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·1· · · · · · · · · WEDNESDAY, MARCH 13, 2024

·2

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good morning,

·4· · everyone.· It's 9:00 a.m.· We'll go ahead and get

·5· · started.

·6· · · · · · · Executive Director Saladino, can we start

·7· · with roll call, please.

·8· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· Yes.· Good

·9· · morning.· Director Saladino, for the record.

10· · · · · · · We'll start with Chair Nixon.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Here.

12· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· Board member

13· · Bezick.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Here.

15· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· Board Member

16· · Cortez.

17· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Here.

18· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· Board member

19· · Gronauer?

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Here.

21· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· Madam Chair,

22· · we do have a quorum.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.

24· · · · · · · Next item on the agenda is public comment.

25· · · · · · · Members of the general public may make
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·1· · comment on matters appearing on the agenda, and may

·2· · bring up matters not appearing on the agenda to the

·3· · attention of the Board.· The Board may discuss the

·4· · matters not appearing on the agenda, but may not act

·5· · on them at this time.· If the Board desires, the

·6· · matters may be placed on a future agenda for action.

·7· · · · · · · Public comments will be limited to five

·8· · minutes per person at the discretion of the

·9· · Chairperson, but will not be restricted according to

10· · viewpoint.

11· · · · · · · Are there any -- is there any public

12· · comment down south?· Seeing there's no public

13· · comment down south, is there any public comment up

14· · north?

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· No public comment up

16· · north.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Mr. Bezick,

18· · your camera is, like, really blurry.· I'm not sure

19· · if it's you or us, but you're going to have to tell

20· · us if there's anybody in the audience or coming up

21· · to the podium.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Okay, will do.

23· · Right now there's nobody in the audience.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you, so much.

25· · · · · · · Hearing there's no public comment, we'll
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·1· · move to the next agenda item, agenda item No. 3,

·2· · Board/executive director announcements and updates.

·3· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· Director

·4· · Saladino, for the record.

·5· · · · · · · The financials have been provided to the

·6· · Board via e-mail.· Is there any questions on that?

·7· · No questions there.

·8· · · · · · · And for our updates, for our stats, I'm

·9· · going to turn it over to Investigator Swarthout to

10· · go over our stats for the last quarter.

11· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Investigator

12· · Swarthout.· So this March 1, we do our end of year

13· · recap in comparison to the previous year.

14· · · · · · · So for licensing from -- the difference

15· · between 2022 and 2023.· 2022, we did 200 licenses

16· · applied, 161 were approved, 39 were either withdrawn

17· · or denied.

18· · · · · · · In 2023, it was a drop.· It was 158 that

19· · applied, 101 that were approved, and 57 that were

20· · either withdrawn or denied.

21· · · · · · · So we do see a 21 percent decrease in

22· · applications this past year than we did the year

23· · before that.· Approval, because we had less applying

24· · also decreased because of that.· We did have a

25· · higher than the previous year withdrawn and denied.
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·1· · · · · · · For December 2023, we had a total of 46

·2· · applications, 24 approved, 22 withdrawn or denied.

·3· · · · · · · For work cards, for 2022, we had a total

·4· · of 12,295 that were received.· 10,593 that were made

·5· · active, 1,088 that were withdrawn, and 614 that were

·6· · denied.

·7· · · · · · · For 2023, we had 15,115 in total that

·8· · applied, 13,036 that are active, 324 that are still

·9· · provisional, 1,032 that were withdrawn, and 723 that

10· · were denied.

11· · · · · · · And then our comparison for just fourth

12· · quarter of 2023 versus 2022.· 2022, we processed

13· · 280- -- 2,843 applications were received in 2022

14· · during that same time period.

15· · · · · · · In 2023 5,390 were received in that time

16· · period.· Of that, 4,378 are active, 316 are

17· · provisional, 401 were withdrawn, and 289 were

18· · denied.

19· · · · · · · Right now, for that provisional, what's

20· · taking the longest is DPS did a change on how

21· · fingerprints were submitted to them, and how they're

22· · received back to us.· So that kind of has had some

23· · growing pains.· So everyone is working on issues

24· · trying to get it squared away.

25· · · · · · · Complaints and investigations.· In 2022 we
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·1· · received 78.· 78 were closed and 19 violations were

·2· · issued out of those 78.

·3· · · · · · · In 2023 we had 79.· 75 of them are closed,

·4· · 4 are still open, and 13 resulted in violations for

·5· · companies.

·6· · · · · · · The complaints in 2023 fourth quarter that

·7· · we received, 18.· 15 of them are closed, 3 are still

·8· · open.

·9· · · · · · · Unlicensed activity comparison between the

10· · two years.· In 2022, we issued 27 unlicensed

11· · activity.· In 2023 we issued 30.· Then we have the

12· · breakdown on what all those were for.

13· · · · · · · And then quarter four, just the two

14· · different quarters, 2022 we did issue seven

15· · unlicensed activity in quarter four.· This year we

16· · only issued four in that time.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I guess a quick

18· · question about (indiscernible).

19· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Excuse me, Madam Chair, can

20· · you speak up?· I couldn't hear you very well.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· No problem.

22· · · · · · · Wondering if you thought the work card

23· · applications increase was due to all the events that

24· · we had towards the end of the year.

25· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Yes.
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·1· · · · · · · So, we had Formula 1 in November, so we

·2· · did see a spike then.· And then all of December, and

·3· · even into the first part of January and February, we

·4· · did have a massive spike in applications for the

·5· · Super Bowl.

·6· · · · · · · So I expect the -- when we report this

·7· · quarter's at the next one, it will probably still

·8· · have that higher increase than we normally do for

·9· · work card applications.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· And the new process

11· · for fingerprinting, have we had conversations with

12· · the DPS?· Is that starting to get streamlined or how

13· · much longer do they think that slowdown will be?

14· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· Director

15· · Saladino, for the record.

16· · · · · · · We've been in communication with DPS.  I

17· · guess it's regarding their third party that they are

18· · moving away from.· So we do have our list that we're

19· · checking against theirs to make sure we get the

20· · fingerprints.· And I believe there was some that

21· · have to come back in and get reprinted.· There were

22· · some issues with the fingerprinting companies that

23· · they did, no fault of ours or fault of anybodys,

24· · just DPS with the growing pains.· But we figure it

25· · should be all fixed in about two weeks.
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Are they moving

·2· · to another third-party vendor or are they just going

·3· · to do it in-house?

·4· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· I think

·5· · they're moving away, totally away, from the

·6· · third-party.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any other questions on

·8· · the report from the Board?

·9· · · · · · · Hearing no questions, we'll move to review

10· · and approve the transcripts for December's meeting,

11· · December 13th and 14th.· It's open for possible

12· · action.

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

14· · Cortez.· I'm going to motion to approve the

15· · December 13 and 14, 2023 minutes as written.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

17· · motion.· Do we have a second?

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion and a

20· · second.· All in favor say aye.

21· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

23· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 5.· Counsel Harris, could

24· · you please swear in any witnesses that are going to

25· · testify today?



Page 11
·1· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· Good morning.· For anyone in

·2· · the audience, including in the north, who is on the

·3· · agenda or plans to testify for the agenda, please

·4· · stand and raise your right hand.

·5

·6· · · · · · · · · · · AUDIENCE MEMBERS,

·7· · · · · · · · · having been duly sworn,

·8· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

·9

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, the next agenda

11· · items are consent items for a potential block vote.

12· · · · · · · I do want to bring up one thing I noticed

13· · on All Purpose, No. 6.· Their birthdate would make

14· · them, like, five-year-olds.· So I think they typed

15· · in 20 and then they couldn't fit in the rest.· So if

16· · we could just make sure when we have an opportunity

17· · to go through their application we update that.

18· · · · · · · And then I did notice that there was one

19· · that was contingent on the block vote, that was

20· · No. 19.

21· · · · · · · Mr. Saladino, why is that -- Executive

22· · Director Saladino, why is that contingent?

23· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:

24· · Mr. Campbell, we haven't received his fingerprints

25· · yet.· He did submit late, but we were hoping to just
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·1· · get them in as a contingent upon negative

·2· · fingerprints.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So we have

·4· · consent items for a potential block vote, Item 6

·5· · through 18.

·6· · · · · · · Does anybody have any issues or questions

·7· · for those consent items?· Are we good to move

·8· · forward then?

·9· · · · · · · So, I'll entertain a motion.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

11· · Cortez motioning to approve block vote consent Items

12· · 6 through 18.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

14· · we have a second?

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

17· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

18· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

20· · · · · · · So, we have Agenda Item No. 19.· Again, it

21· · was up for potential block vote.· The only reason it

22· · did not go through is because -- or wasn't part of

23· · the block vote is because it doesn't have

24· · fingerprints.· I will entertain a motion for this

25· · agenda item.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·2· · Cortez motioning to approve Item No. 19 for

·3· · Christopher D. Campbell applying for an individual

·4· · private investigator license, subject to clearance

·5· · of a clear background check with no positive hits.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

·7· · motion.· Do we have a second?

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

10· · motion, we have a second.· All in favor say aye.

11· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

13· · · · · · · So, anybody that was a part of the block

14· · vote that would want to leave now, you're more than

15· · welcome to do so, or you can stay and join us.· We

16· · can be quite entertaining sometimes.· But understand

17· · if you have something else to do.

18· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 20, private investigator.

19· · It's 702 Consulting.· Do we have David Logue here?

20· · · · · · · Good morning, sir.

21· · · · · · · MR. LOGUE:· Morning.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Excuse me, Madam

23· · Chair?

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Yes.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· I have a long-time
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·1· · relationship with Mr. Logue with the police

·2· · department, Metropolitan Police Department.· We were

·3· · never on the same chain of command, nothing like

·4· · that.· We didn't work -- he didn't work for me, I

·5· · didn't work for him.· I don't feel like I have any

·6· · problem.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Hi, David.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good morning, sir.

10· · Tell us a little bit about yourself and the

11· · intentions with the license.

12· · · · · · · MR. LOGUE:· I did 29 years, retiring as a

13· · lieutenant with Metro.· Last ten years was with

14· · criminal intelligence.

15· · · · · · · Since then, I've worked two years at

16· · the -- when I retired in 2013, I worked two years at

17· · the Wynn as the Director of Security.· And I went to

18· · Cosmopolitan, where I was vice-president of security

19· · and surveillance, and have been so employed until

20· · now.

21· · · · · · · I did give my resignation last week, and

22· · agreed to work as long as April 30th, but I think

23· · we've kind of compromised, maybe the second week of

24· · April I'll be out.· So -- and that's it for that.

25· · · · · · · And my intentions are to just work as an
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·1· · expert witness and do some consulting in the city.

·2· · That's it.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay, sounds good.

·4· · · · · · · Any questions for Mr. Logue?

·5· · · · · · · Hearing no questions, I'll entertain a

·6· · motion.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·8· · Cortez, motioning to approve Mr. Logue for an

·9· · individual private investigator license, and that it

10· · be placed in abeyance so that he may become the

11· · qualifying agent and member, subject to all

12· · statutory and regulatory requirements.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

14· · motion.· Do we have a second?

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

17· · motion, we have a second.· All in favor say aye.

18· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

20· · · · · · · Congratulations, good luck to you.

21· · · · · · · MR. LOGUE:· Thank you.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· This portion of

23· · the agenda is for Private Patrol Officer.

24· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 21, David Praud.

25· · · · · · · Is he in the audience?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. PRAUD:· Good morning.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good morning, sir.

·3· · · · · · · MR. PRAUD:· I have a hearing piece in,

·4· · just in case.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Got you.· Got you.

·6· · You're applying for an individual private

·7· · patrolman's license?

·8· · · · · · · MR. PRAUD:· Yes, I am.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Tell us a little bit

10· · about yourself and the intentions with the license?

11· · · · · · · MR. PRAUD:· I'm sorry?

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Could you tell us a

13· · little bit about yourself and the intentions with

14· · the license.

15· · · · · · · MR. PRAUD:· Well, I'd like to thank you

16· · for having me in.· My name is David Praud, spelled

17· · P-r-a-u-d.· It's French, and that's the only French

18· · word I know.

19· · · · · · · So I have applied for a security company

20· · license.· I've been a resident of the great state of

21· · Nevada for almost 50 years.

22· · · · · · · In that time, I've seen growth beyond my

23· · wildest imagination.· Most of the growth has been

24· · positive, but with the good also comes the bad.  I

25· · see the need for more well-trained security
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·1· · officers.· In fact, I know private security is the

·2· · fastest growing industry in Nevada right now.

·3· · · · · · · As for myself, I'm a certified range

·4· · instructor, as well as certified with pistols and

·5· · rifles.· I have been in the private security sector

·6· · for over 20 years.

·7· · · · · · · And the most important training that I

·8· · have had is in Nevada state law and federal law,

·9· · which is really important.

10· · · · · · · The most important -- I have experts in

11· · these fields ready to help me, join my group.· And

12· · as myself, ready to train my officers to the highest

13· · security and ethical standards.· My company motto

14· · and goal will be exceptional training, superior

15· · protection.

16· · · · · · · Again, I thank you for this opportunity,

17· · and look forward to working with the PILB and

18· · ensuring a safer and better Nevada.· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · Board, are there any questions for

21· · Mr. Praud?

22· · · · · · · Hearing there are no questions, I'll

23· · entertain a motion.

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.  I

25· · move that we approve Mr. Praud for an individual
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·1· · private patrolman license, subject to all statutory

·2· · and regulatory requirements.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

·4· · motion.· Do we have a second?

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·6· · Cortez.· I'll second the motion.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

·8· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·9· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

11· · · · · · · Congratulations, sir.· Good luck.

12· · · · · · · MR. PRAUD:· Thank you, very much.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 22,

14· · Raesheana Sullivan.

15· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· Hello.· How are you?

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good.· Good morning,

17· · ma'am.· Please tell us little bit about yourself and

18· · intentions with the license.

19· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· Yes, ma'am.· My name is

20· · Raesheana Sullivan.· I am currently --

21· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Excuse me.· Can you speak

22· · up a little, please?

23· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· I'm sorry.

24· · · · · · · I am 32 years old.· I've been in the

25· · security business since I was 16 working front
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·1· · office.· After that, I moved to various locations.

·2· · And doing security in different job sites.

·3· · · · · · · After that I went to corrections.· I was a

·4· · correction officer for two and a half years.· And I

·5· · realized security is something that I've always

·6· · wanted to do.· And I figured Nevada was my next step

·7· · in that.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Are there --

·9· · Board, are there any questions for Ms. Sullivan?

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

11· · · · · · · Good morning, Ms. Sullivan.· Your finances

12· · are a little bit suspect.

13· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· Yes, sir.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Can you explain 52

15· · total delinquencies?

16· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· Yes, I can.· So, during

17· · that time in corrections, I was also supporting two

18· · households.· My mother was sick.· I made a lot of

19· · decisions financially.· And that 52 delinquencies

20· · was my car loan.· I paid off my car.· Everything has

21· · been corrected.· As far as that car loan, it's paid

22· · off.· It's done.

23· · · · · · · I had -- did not have the adequate

24· · financial literacy, but I currently have mentors who

25· · are willing to help me, and I'm currently working
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·1· · with people to help advocate for my credit as well.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, just to be clear,

·3· · all of these accounts, the delinquencies in three

·4· · accounts, they're all taken care of and closed?

·5· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· The car loan is currently

·6· · closed.· However, the other two, one is being

·7· · disputed and the other one is in a payment plan.· So

·8· · everything is literally being taken care of.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Once again,

11· · Ms. Sullivan, what are your intentions with this

12· · license?

13· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· My intentions are to

14· · currently open up a security company.· I realize

15· · security is something I've always been in.· It took

16· · me a while to understand that, but now I've grown

17· · and matured.· And again, I have several mentors who

18· · are backing me.· And my intention is to become one

19· · of the best I can.· Train my officers like I was

20· · trained.· Mentor my officers like I was mentored.

21· · And provide the best services that I can.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Is Investigator

23· · Diaz here?

24· · · · · · · Investigator Diaz, could you provide some

25· · additional information on Ms. Sullivan, as -- are
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·1· · all these taken care of?

·2· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· Investigator Diaz, for

·3· · the record.

·4· · · · · · · Yes, the three accounts closed and paid

·5· · for by collections.· Those accounts are now closed.

·6· · It looks like she is in a payment plan for the

·7· · collections and for the high credits.· She did

·8· · provide documentation to show that she is currently

·9· · paying it off.· We have discussed that, so that part

10· · is good.

11· · · · · · · The delinquencies, unfortunately, there is

12· · nothing to fix that.· The payments were delinquent.

13· · Eventually they will fall off the credit report, but

14· · as of now there have not been any delinquencies.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Just for my -- the

16· · delinquencies happened back in 2010 or were they

17· · more recent?

18· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· A few of them were recent,

19· · and some of them were back, yes.· Again, it took me

20· · a minute to gain financial literacy.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I understand.

22· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· Which I now understand.  I

23· · know I need assurances, as far as payroll.  I

24· · understand the ins and outs.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· By more recent,

·2· · what are we talking about?

·3· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· Recent?· The car loan?

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· The delinquencies.

·5· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· Those -- my car was paid

·6· · off a year ago, so that's what I mean by recent.

·7· · That was the most recent thing.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· All right.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

10· · for the Board?· Hearing there are no further

11· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

13· · · · · · · I move that Ms. Sullivan be approved for

14· · an individual private patrolman license, subject to

15· · all statutory and regulatory requirements.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

17· · motion.· Do we have a second?

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

19· · Cortez.· I'll second that motion.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

21· · motion, we have a second.· All in favor say aye.

22· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Ma'am, just -- you

24· · know, running a business is very difficult.· And I'm

25· · glad that you've found your way to financial
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·1· · literacy and you have some mentors, because that is

·2· · important.· Just be really, really careful.· I think

·3· · that's why we're hesitant, because you will be

·4· · responsible for payroll and other things that we

·5· · want to make sure that we don't have employees out

·6· · there that aren't getting paid.

·7· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· I'll make sure that they

·8· · get -- I'm working my hardest and I'll continue to

·9· · work hard.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· All right.· Thank you,

11· · and good luck to you, ma'am.

12· · · · · · · Motion passes.· Thank you and good luck.

13· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· Thank you, so much.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· The next agenda item

15· · is 23.· Single Source Security.· Do we have -- let's

16· · see here.· Mr. Bond, Mr. Cook, and Mr. Escamilla.

17· · · · · · · MR. HJELLE:· Good morning.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Morning.

19· · · · · · · MR. HJELLE:· My name is Mark Hjelle.· I'm

20· · the CEO for Single Source Security.· So I'm joined

21· · today by Bob Bond, who is our proposed Qualifying

22· · Agent.· I have members of my Board of Directors,

23· · Andy Cook and Brandon (indiscernible).

24· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· What was the second name?

25· · · · · · · MR. HJELLE:· Andy Cook.· And over here is
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·1· · Brandon Pinderhughes.· Sorry, forgot the mike here.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Tell us a

·3· · little bit about your company and intentions with

·4· · the new license.

·5· · · · · · · MR. HJELLE:· Right.· So we are Single

·6· · Source Security.· We are what's known as a managed

·7· · services provider for security services.· We serve

·8· · national customers.· And we do that through locally

·9· · licensed security firms.

10· · · · · · · So our intent is really to be able to

11· · serve our national customers in the state here,

12· · again, through locally licensed security firms.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

14· · · · · · · MR. HJELLE:· And I thought if it would be

15· · okay, I came into the company in 2022 as the CEO.

16· · There's a bit of history, I think, that came into

17· · the report and background findings.· If it would be

18· · helpful to the Board, if I can just cover that

19· · briefly, if that would be okay?· Would that be

20· · helpful?

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I think it would,

22· · yeah.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Be very helpful.

24· · · · · · · MR. HJELLE:· I have some notes here,

25· · because it's -- this all predates my leadership of
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·1· · the company.· But going back to December of 2019.

·2· · Our original founders learned that even though they

·3· · are not performing directly the services in the

·4· · state of Nevada, you have a new license.· They were

·5· · under the guidance from legal counsel that they

·6· · didn't require a license.

·7· · · · · · · Also, we got the citation that said you

·8· · needed to be licensed.· So that was back in December

·9· · of 2019.· Tried to get in front of the Board in June

10· · of 2020.· Pandemic.· Ultimately came before this

11· · Board in September of 2020.· In that hearing, the

12· · transcript, our application was denied.· Because I

13· · think the two original founders could not

14· · definitively say that we were properly licensed in

15· · all the other states in which we operated.

16· · · · · · · So that was -- at that point, turning to

17· · what we have, make sure we're properly licensed in

18· · all other states across where we operate the

19· · business.· Apologize.· If I can read my notes.

20· · · · · · · We were in regular contact with Kevin

21· · Ingram at the time.· He advised around February of

22· · '21 that we were -- had not made enough progress, so

23· · we should not come before the Board.

24· · · · · · · And then ultimately, in March of 2021, we

25· · received a second citation.· So at that point, which
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·1· · should not have happened.· Again, I wasn't here, but

·2· · unacceptable.· Apologize to the Board for that.

·3· · · · · · · But at that point, we ceased and desisted

·4· · operations in the state of Nevada.· And we put our

·5· · full focus on really making sure we were completely

·6· · complying in all the other states.

·7· · · · · · · So at that point, went to every single

·8· · state in which we operated, validated we had a

·9· · proper license, or if we needed to get one we got it

10· · in place.

11· · · · · · · And then subsequent to that, we actually

12· · hired a direct licensing compliance specialist for

13· · our company, which is led by our in-house legal

14· · counsel to make sure we are legally compliant in all

15· · states in which we operate.

16· · · · · · · So at this point in time, I can tell the

17· · Board that we are fully compliant in all the states

18· · in which we operate with licensing.· So -- which is

19· · extremely important.

20· · · · · · · Early in my career I was a lawyer, so I

21· · take the law very seriously.· So that brings us to

22· · this hearing today.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I appreciate that

24· · work.· I know it's not easy and it's confusing with

25· · so many different states, and they're different --
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·1· · states have different laws and regulations.· So I

·2· · appreciate that.

·3· · · · · · · Board, are there any further questions for

·4· · this group?

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

·6· · · · · · · Who is Mr. Pinderhughes?

·7· · · · · · · MR. PINDERHUGHES:· Me, sir.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Can I speak with

·9· · you?

10· · · · · · · MR. PINDERHUGHES:· Sure.

11· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Okay.· There's

12· · several civil filings towards you.· And the

13· · investigator questioned you about the civil things,

14· · filings, and he stated he was -- he was stating you

15· · were unaware of them and currently contacting

16· · Cumberland County to resolve these.

17· · · · · · · MR. PINDERHUGHES:· Correct.

18· · · · · · · MR. GRONAUER:· Did you contact Cumberland

19· · County?

20· · · · · · · MR. PINDERHUGHES:· I did.

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Do you have any

22· · documentation?

23· · · · · · · MR. PINDERHUGHES:· I do.· I provided it to

24· · the investigator.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, Investigator Diaz,
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·1· · is everything cleared on those -- on those civil

·2· · filings?

·3· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· Investigator Diaz, for

·4· · the record.

·5· · · · · · · Yes, ma'am.· Mr. Pinderhughes, he provided

·6· · documentation a few weeks ago.· He did contact them

·7· · and provided multiple pages to show all of these are

·8· · closed and taken care of.

·9· · · · · · · He did get an explanation from the courts.

10· · It looks to be that there was some kind of dispute

11· · between him and his mother and an apartment complex.

12· · All of that is taken care of.· The apartment complex

13· · has reached out.· They confirmed all payments are

14· · completed.· The courts confirmed all payments are

15· · good.· This whole issue is completely taken care of.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Awesome, thank

17· · you for that.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Thank you.· Thank

19· · you for doing that due diligence.

20· · · · · · · MR. PINDERHUGHES:· I was unaware, but it's

21· · resolved.· Thank you.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Now, is this

23· · Single Source Security or is it Protos Security?

24· · · · · · · MR. PINDERHUGHES:· Single Source Security,

25· · sir.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· D/b/a Protos?

·2· · · · · · · MR. PINDERHUGHES:· Correct.

·3· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any other questions

·5· · from the Board?· Hearing no questions, I'll

·6· · entertain a motion.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

·8· · · · · · · I move that we approve Single Source

·9· · Security for a new private patrolman license, and

10· · Robert William Bond be approved for an individual

11· · private patrolman license, and that his individual

12· · license be placed in abeyance so he may become a

13· · Qualifying Agent.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

15· · we have a second?

16· · · · · · · Do you want to finish the rest?

17· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· There's additional

18· · members to be approved, Board Member Bezick, so we'd

19· · have to finish out that motion.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· The second part.

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Sorry, I don't have

22· · that information in front of me.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Do you want me to

24· · make the motion?

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So we'll -- can we
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·1· · just --

·2· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· If Board Member Bezick could

·3· · just withdraw his motion, and I just need another

·4· · Board member to make the new motion.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Board Member

·6· · Bezick.· I withdraw the motion.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

·9· · I make a motion to approve Single Source Security,

10· · LLC as applying for a new corporate license, Robert

11· · W. Bond is applying for an individual private patrol

12· · officer license -- officer license.· If approved, he

13· · is requesting that his individual license be placed

14· · in abeyance so he may become the Qualifying Agent.

15· · Members to be approved are Robert W. Bond, Andrew T.

16· · Cook, Anthony Hill Escamilla, Mark...

17· · · · · · · MR. HJELLE:· Hjelle.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Hjelle, and

19· · Brandon Pinderhughes.· This is subject to all

20· · statutory and regulatory requirements.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

22· · we have a second?

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

25· · have a second.· All in favor, say aye.



Page 31
·1· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

·3· · · · · · · Thank you for doing all the hard work.· We

·4· · appreciate you, and good luck to you.

·5· · · · · · · MR. HJELLE:· Thank you, very much.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 24, SK

·7· · Security, LLC.· Do we have Sidney Kile?

·8· · · · · · · MR. KILE:· Good morning.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Tell us a little bit

10· · about yourself and the intentions with the license,

11· · please.

12· · · · · · · MR. KILE:· My name Sidney Kile.· I'm 26

13· · years old.· I started a security company where I'm

14· · from, in Kansas City, Missouri, seven years ago.· So

15· · I was very young.· In that time frame, we've grown

16· · to be the largest private security company in

17· · Kansas City, with the largest fleet, with employees

18· · of almost 100.

19· · · · · · · We operate there, and we've done a great

20· · job of making the community safer, established

21· · really good relationships with the police

22· · departments and operated by the book.

23· · · · · · · In 2019, it was the first time that I had

24· · ever traveled to Las Vegas, and I immediately fell

25· · in love.· So April of last year I decided to move
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·1· · here, and now I'd like to continue with my goal of

·2· · improving the communities that touch my heart so

·3· · dearly.· And that's why I'm applying.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Thank you.

·5· · Board, are there any questions for Mr. Kile?

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

·7· · · · · · · Investigator Swarthout, on the arrests,

·8· · are they dismissed?

·9· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Yes, they are.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

11· · Cortez.

12· · · · · · · Investigator Swarthout, what year was the

13· · second arrest in?

14· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· 2022.

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· On or about the same

16· · time as the first?· Was it concurrent?

17· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The second

18· · arrest.· 2013.· That arrest actually doesn't even

19· · show up on his fingerprints.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Thank you for

21· · disclosing.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· 2013 was the DUI?

23· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Yes.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

25· · from the Board?
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Still thinking.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We'll let you think.

·3· · · · · · · MR. KILE:· If I may, Counsel, my -- that

·4· · DUI was when I was 16 years old.· I was very naive

·5· · and young and I learned very quickly.

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· So you're breaking

·7· · two laws, drinking and driving underage.

·8· · · · · · · MR. KILE:· Yes, sir.

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· The diversion

10· · program we have, there was documentation of that?

11· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· There should be

12· · in his file that we had documentation for it.

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

15· · Cortez.

16· · · · · · · I do have a question regarding the

17· · assault.· I do see that it was -- the disposition

18· · was nolle prosequi.· Give me a little bit of the

19· · history of that, what happened.

20· · · · · · · MR. KILE:· It was an event where I felt

21· · like my life was in danger.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I'm a visual kind of

23· · a person, so I need you to paint me the story.

24· · · · · · · MR. KILE:· Absolutely.· It was on the 31st

25· · of March in 2022.· I was proceeding to my vehicle.
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·1· · And as I entered my vehicle, there was an individual

·2· · in my driver's seat.· I had -- I always carry a

·3· · firearm with me while I'm in Kansas City.· So I had

·4· · asked the individual to get out of my car.· The

·5· · interaction became very heated in that moment, so I

·6· · had taken out my weapon at the ready.

·7· · · · · · · As soon as he saw the weapon, he

·8· · immediately started to comply.· Got out of the

·9· · vehicle and started to walk away.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· He was in the

11· · driver's seat?

12· · · · · · · MR. KILE:· Correct.

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Got it.

14· · · · · · · MR. KILE:· And he had broken the latch to

15· · get in.

16· · · · · · · Once -- once he had exited the vehicle and

17· · started to walk away, I turned around to the

18· · individual that I was with, which was my girlfriend

19· · at the time, and asked her to call the police.

20· · · · · · · As soon as he heard me say that, he

21· · immediately turned around and then became -- a

22· · situation that he approaching me.· Running at me

23· · directly.· We proceed backwards about 25 feet.· And

24· · when he was two feet away reaching for the firearm I

25· · chose to shoot him.
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·1· · · · · · · He survived.· It was a very long process.

·2· · And I think the judicial process is ultimately what

·3· · led to the dismissal.· Once he testified and gave

·4· · his actions.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Understood.· Thank

·6· · you for your transparency.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

·8· · for the Board?· Hearing there are no further

·9· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

11· · Cortez, motioning to approve Mr. Kile for an

12· · individual private patrol license, and that it be

13· · placed in abeyance so that he becomes the Qualifying

14· · Agent.· Member to be approved is Sidney P. Kile.

15· · All is subject to statutory and regulatory

16· · requirements.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

18· · we have a second?

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

21· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

22· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

24· · Congratulations, and good luck to you.

25· · · · · · · MR. KILE:· Thank you so, so much.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· The show me state.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We will move on to

·3· · Agenda Item No. 25, Marvel Tate.

·4· · · · · · · Good morning, sir.

·5· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· Good morning.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· The gentleman with

·7· · you?

·8· · · · · · · MR. PRICE:· I'm one of the managing

·9· · members, Kendrick Price.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Tell us a little bit

11· · about yourself, sir, and intentions with the

12· · license.

13· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· My name is Marvel Tate.· I'm 40

14· · years old.

15· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Can you speak up, please?

16· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· Sorry.· My name is Marvel Tate.

17· · I'm a father of seven.· I've been doing security

18· · since I was 18 years old.· I'm (indiscernible) --

19· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Can you repeat that?

20· · · · · · · I'm having -- can the mike come a little

21· · closer?

22· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· Sorry.· My name is Marvel Tate.

23· · I'm 40 years old.· I'm a father of seven, from

24· · Belleville (ph), Illinois.· I've been doing security

25· · since I was 18 years old.· My story is really
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·1· · unique.

·2· · · · · · · When I first started doing this job,

·3· · honestly, it was just a job.· It was just, you know,

·4· · 18 years old, it was just something that was easy to

·5· · do at the time.· This job has grown to be more than

·6· · just a job.· It's grown to be a profession.· Sort of

·7· · like a dream for me, a passion.

·8· · · · · · · So the fact that I'm here where I am for

·9· · me is a big win where I come from, where I started

10· · at as a guard that had, you know, zero understanding

11· · of how important a job was for others, even myself.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· What are the

13· · intentions with the license?

14· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· To grow the security company,

15· · build jobs for others.· Trying to keep that same

16· · thing going for myself to the other guards that are

17· · starting off, that they can do just what I'm doing.

18· · That it's possible.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Are there any further

20· · questions from the Board?

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

22· · · · · · · Says if you are granted this license, you

23· · want to put a license in abeyance and become the

24· · Qualified Agent.

25· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· Yes, sir.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Do you know what a

·2· · Qualifying Agent requires?

·3· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· Yes.

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Explain to me.

·5· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· Well, one, they monitor

·6· · everything --

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· I can't hear you.

·8· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· They monitor 99 percent of

·9· · everything that goes on with the security company.

10· · As far as the requirements from the PILB, standards

11· · and everything.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Is there an admin

13· · person in your company that would handle the

14· · paperwork, licensing, all that, and he would just be

15· · overseeing it, or would be --

16· · · · · · · MR. PRICE:· I handle all the paperwork.  I

17· · handle all the paperwork.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· And could you state

19· · your name for the record, and your position?

20· · · · · · · MR. PRICE:· Kendrick Price.· I am the CFO.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Why aren't you

23· · going to be the Qualifying Agent, then?

24· · · · · · · MR. PRICE:· I am currently a couple

25· · hundred hours short.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· All right.· With

·2· · previous work history.

·3· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· Yes, sir.

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· You worked for

·5· · multiple companies.· And when they were asked about

·6· · your employment, they stated there were several

·7· · issues.

·8· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· Yes, sir.

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· The most common

10· · complaints from the companies were sleeping on duty;

11· · no call, no show; multiple call offs, meaning not

12· · showing up for work; just calling in sick or

13· · whatever; just quit showing up and no communication;

14· · unprofessional conduct; violations of company

15· · policy; hard to contact when on post; uniform

16· · issues; commit to schedule issues; very aggressive

17· · per client; did not file reports.

18· · · · · · · That background does not sound like a very

19· · good Qualifying Agent for me.

20· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· Yes, sir.

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· So, what do you

22· · have to say about this?

23· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· To be honest with you, sir,

24· · I --

25· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Can you --
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·1· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· I define the person that I am.

·2· · I know who I am.· I know what I have performed with

·3· · these jobs.· I been as high as a vice-president of

·4· · operations for a security company.· And as long as

·5· · operations manager, supervisor, pretty much,

·6· · 90 percent of these companies I've been with, I know

·7· · what I can do.· The only difference is now is, I was

·8· · given 96 hours a week some of these jobs.· I'm now

·9· · doing it for myself.· So I define the person that I

10· · am.

11· · · · · · · And to be totally honest with you,

12· · accountability starts with the top.· Every guard is

13· · not perfect.· Every organization is not perfect.

14· · So, pretty sure that any organization need guards,

15· · they're not going to get up here and they're only

16· · going to tell one side of the story.· So I can only

17· · speak for myself and what I think of myself.

18· · · · · · · I'm confident in myself.· I know what I

19· · give.· I know my work ethic.· That's why I'm here

20· · today.· I can't control what's being said.· I can

21· · only control my own actions.· That's exactly what I

22· · tell my guards.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· I believe past

24· · performance doesn't always indicate future

25· · performance, okay?· I can give you that benefit of
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·1· · the doubt.· However, to me, there's so many for so

·2· · many companies and so many different instances, it

·3· · creates a problem for me.

·4· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· Uh-huh.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Especially as a

·6· · Qualifying Agent.· Because you're responsible for

·7· · that whole business.

·8· · · · · · · That's all, thank you.

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

10· · Cortez.

11· · · · · · · I do have some follow-up comments and

12· · possibly questions.

13· · · · · · · When you indicated that you can only speak

14· · for yourself and accountability starts at the top, I

15· · didn't really hear you take any kind of

16· · accountability regarding a collective opinion on

17· · numerous, numerous companies.· Everybody --

18· · everybody in this room can't be wrong if we all

19· · agree that you have -- you're sleeping on duty,

20· · you're not calling in, not showing, multiple calls

21· · off, just quit, not showing, unprofessional conduct.

22· · And all I heard you say is that you can only stick

23· · to who you are as a person.· I get that.· Be who you

24· · are.

25· · · · · · · But unfortunately, who you are has
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·1· · described unpleasant descriptives of who you are as

·2· · an employee.· And you're asking to be a Qualifying

·3· · Agent.· You would be at the top.

·4· · · · · · · So if all I had basically in front of me

·5· · was based off a collection of individuals who have

·6· · pretty much painted you as not an individual who's

·7· · going to be responsible, or even reliable, is that

·8· · what you're going to teach everybody behind you?

·9· · Because it starts at the top.· You said it starts at

10· · the top.· And this is a standard of where you're

11· · starting.· It's incredibly disappointing.

12· · · · · · · MR. TATE:· (Indiscernible.)

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I don't have any

14· · questions at this time.· I just -- you had your

15· · opportunity to speak.· I was hoping you were going

16· · to come back strong with something, but

17· · unfortunately I didn't hear that.· I didn't hear

18· · that.

19· · · · · · · No questions at this time.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Anything further from

21· · the Board?· Hearing there's no further questions or

22· · comments, I'll entertain a motion.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

24· · · · · · · Move to deny the appeal of Mr. Marvel L.

25· · Tate, who's applying for an individual private



Page 43
·1· · patrol officer license.· If approved, he is

·2· · requesting that his individual private patrol

·3· · officer license be placed in abeyance so he may

·4· · become the Qualifying Agent for Sentinel Security

·5· · Force, LLC, License No. 4016.· Subject to statutory

·6· · and regulatory requirements.

·7· · · · · · · And reason for denial is past history of

·8· · too many negatives that for a Qualifying Agent, that

·9· · this doesn't fit the bill.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

11· · we have a second?

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

14· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

15· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So the motion was that

17· · you were not approved for the license, and that has

18· · been approved.

19· · · · · · · You know, I have to agree with everything

20· · everybody said.· There's just an issue with

21· · performance and that's the problem.

22· · · · · · · So appreciate you applying.· You're more

23· · than welcome to apply again in a year, and hopefully

24· · there's been some change.· Thank you.

25· · · · · · · Next agenda item is Agenda Item No. 26,
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·1· · Best Crowd Management.

·2· · · · · · · Sir, please tell us little bit about

·3· · yourself and your intentions of the license.

·4· · · · · · · MR. MOSS:· Good morning.· I'm Steven Ray

·5· · Moss.· I'm a very young 56 years old.· Originally

·6· · from Louisiana.· United States Air Force veteran.

·7· · · · · · · With -- my background mainly -- had been

·8· · in law enforcement.· I was -- worked for Grant

·9· · Parish Sheriff's Office in Leesville, Louisiana for

10· · 13 years.· Ten of those, I was criminal

11· · investigator, detective.· For the last year or so I

12· · was their evidence custodian and crime scenes

13· · investigator and team lead on our SRT team, our SWAT

14· · team.

15· · · · · · · Went into defense contracting after that

16· · for about a decade.· Traveling throughout the United

17· · States for companies Mobius Industries and Threat

18· · Tech.· Was under a federal contract, in which we

19· · were training United States military soldiers that

20· · were deploying to Iraq and Afghanistan.· Again, did

21· · that for about a decade, and then branched off into

22· · event security and was hired by Best

23· · (indiscernible) --

24· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Best?

25· · · · · · · MR. MOSS:· Best Crowd Management.· Been



Page 45
·1· · with Best for approximately two years now.· My first

·2· · year with Best I was on their national event team,

·3· · and that's what I was hired as.· And was responsible

·4· · for managing and coordinating the event security at

·5· · Super Bowl last year in Phoenix and 2023 FISU World

·6· · University Games up in Lake Placid, New York.

·7· · That's what I did for pretty much the first year

·8· · with Best.

·9· · · · · · · During that time, I had been contacted

10· · through Best management that there was an

11· · opportunity in Las Vegas to be the general manager

12· · and to handle their branch here.· It's one of the

13· · largest branches in Best.· We have contracts

14· · throughout the United States with NCAA, NFL, NHL.

15· · Do a lot of sporting events.

16· · · · · · · Here, our biggest contract is with MGM

17· · event operations.· We handle the event security at

18· · T-Mobile Arena, Michelob Ultra, Dolby Live, Grand

19· · Garden.· We do have guest services that we do.· And

20· · we have some other contracts as well.· Employ a

21· · thousand to 1200 staff.

22· · · · · · · And moved, me and my family moved here

23· · from Louisiana.· It's been about a year now.· We

24· · moved here permanently to take the role as general

25· · manager.
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·1· · · · · · · That's -- that is me in a nutshell.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · MR. MOSS:· You're welcome.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You know, I forgot to

·5· · ask, did you guys swear in?

·6· · · · · · · MR. MOSS:· We did, yes.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I just wanted to make

·8· · sure.

·9· · · · · · · MR. MOSS:· I know there's some -- probably

10· · some financial -- individual financial, personal

11· · financial questions that you all may have for me,

12· · which I'll be glad to explain.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

14· · · · · · · Board, are there I any questions for --

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

16· · Cortez.

17· · · · · · · Go ahead with the explanation.· Thank you.

18· · · · · · · MR. MOSS:· Well, first and foremost, let

19· · me apologize.· When I received the background check,

20· · I had a Chapter 13 bankruptcy right out of the

21· · Air Force.· As a young airman, I had met and married

22· · my high school sweetheart.· We separated, she ran up

23· · some credit cards on me, but since I was still in

24· · the Air Force, I was held responsible for them.

25· · · · · · · And when I got out, at the advice of my
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·1· · father, saw an attorney, set up a Chapter 13, paid

·2· · it off over -- I think I paid $163 for three years

·3· · and paid it all off.· And I think that was in '92.

·4· · So, it was a good 30, 31 years ago.

·5· · · · · · · I honestly thought I had put that in my

·6· · background.· Was nothing I was trying to not

·7· · disclose.· But when I went back so -- I was so

·8· · certain that I did, I'm, like, no, they made a

·9· · mistake.· I went back and looked and it was at the

10· · bottom of the page underneath where I had some other

11· · judgments that I had disclosed and I just simply

12· · missed it.

13· · · · · · · The more recent stuff was just

14· · unfortunate.· It was -- it was after a divorce,

15· · unfortunately.· I had two vehicles, my son's and my

16· · ex-wife now.· It was their vehicles that I let them

17· · keep after the divorce.· I was actually paying

18· · them -- paying her to pay it.· And she was not.

19· · · · · · · Those two vehicles went into repossession

20· · without my knowledge.· At that time I was in defense

21· · contracting and I was traveling the nation.· I was

22· · away for weeks at a time.

23· · · · · · · Unfortunately, the -- it was through

24· · (indiscernible) Federal Credit Union --

25· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· You said --
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·1· · · · · · · MR. MOSS:· Barksdale.· The loans were

·2· · through Barksdale Federal Credit Union in Leesville,

·3· · Louisiana.· They sought judgment against me.

·4· · · · · · · All that paperwork and -- they were served

·5· · to my mother, my elderly mother at her house.  I

·6· · never saw the paperwork.· By the time I saw the

·7· · paperwork and they were delivered to me, it was a

·8· · stack about this high.· She had very nicely kept

·9· · them for me, but didn't inform me that these were

10· · coming in.

11· · · · · · · Unfortunately, there was a judgment

12· · against me.· I spent three years paying all that

13· · off.· It was probably $20,000 or so I paid off,

14· · which I think I concluded all that just a couple

15· · years ago.

16· · · · · · · So that's -- that was the two issues that

17· · I had.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Are there any further

20· · questions?· If there's no further questions I'll

21· · entertain a motion.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Board Member Cortez

23· · motioning to approve Best Crowd Management a new

24· · corporate patrol -- private patrol officer license.

25· · And that Mr. Steven R. Moss be approved the private
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·1· · patrol license, and that it be placed in abeyance so

·2· · he may become the Qualifying Agent.· Corporate

·3· · officers to also be approved are Rene P. Crosswhite,

·4· · Mark R. Porterfield, and Walter P. Robertson.· All

·5· · subject to statutory and regulatory requirements.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

·7· · motion.· Do we have a second?

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

10· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

11· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

13· · Congratulations.· Good luck to you guys.

14· · · · · · · MR. MOSS:· Thank you, so much.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 27,

16· · Mr. Kelley Murcray.· If the Board indulges,

17· · Mr. Murcray and I used to work together at Allied

18· · Universal.· He subsequently left and has moved on to

19· · another company, as evidence of this.· We did not --

20· · we were counterparts.· I didn't work for him, he

21· · didn't work for me.· So I feel comfortable making

22· · any decision on there, but I just wanted to put it

23· · on the record that we do know each other.· Okay.

24· · · · · · · Mr. Murcray, tell us a little bit about

25· · yourself and the intentions with the license.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. MURCRAY:· Yeah, good morning.· My name

·2· · is Kelley Murcray.· I'm a senior vice-president for

·3· · Prosegur Services Group for the west region, which

·4· · includes the six states on the left side of the map.

·5· · · · · · · Been in the private security industry for

·6· · 25 years.· As mentioned, 23 of that was with Allied

·7· · Universal.· The last 18 months or so were with

·8· · Prosegur Services Group, international, global

·9· · company.· We currently do not provide services in

10· · Nevada, but switching our qualified agent to myself

11· · for future business opportunities.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · Any questions for Mr. Murcray?· Hearing

14· · there are no questions, I'll entertain a motion.

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

16· · Cortez motioning to approve Mr. Kelley W. Murcray

17· · for a private patrol officer license, and that he be

18· · placed in abeyance so that he becomes the Qualifying

19· · Agent license -- with license No. 2187, subject to

20· · all statutory and regulatory requirements.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

22· · we have a second?

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

25· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.
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·1· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

·3· · Congratulations.

·4· · · · · · · MR. MURCRAY:· Thank you.· Take care.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good seeing you.

·6· · · · · · · So, the next group starts at 10:30.  I

·7· · think we'll take a -- looks like we do have some

·8· · folks in the audience.· So we'll take a brief break

·9· · and then start the next portion of the agenda items,

10· · which would be registration and appeals.

11· · · · · · · So let's say 10:15?

12· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· Yeah.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.· See you

14· · back then.

15· · · · · · · · · · · · (Off record.)

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Is everybody back and

17· · ready to go?

18· · · · · · · So, we're here for the second part of the

19· · agenda, which is the registration appeals.· When you

20· · hear your name, please come up and come forward.

21· · · · · · · Prior to that, we're going to have Counsel

22· · Harris swear everybody in.

23· · ...

24· · ...

25· · ...
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · AUDIENCE MEMBERS,

·2· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

·3· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

·4

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· If we can have Agenda

·6· · Item No. 28, Korthary Ratcliffe.· Okay.· We'll go

·7· · ahead and trail that agenda item.

·8· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 29, Harold Jones.· Thank

·9· · you.

10· · · · · · · Investigator Swarthout, would you tell us

11· · why we're for Mr. Jones

12· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

13· · denied for a felony conviction.· It was -- the

14· · applicant had listed it as November 2011.· We have

15· · since got the prints back.· The arrest was on

16· · September 4th of 2009 out of Chicago, Illinois.

17· · · · · · · It was disclosed, it was a felony

18· · conviction for possession of cannabis.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So it was

20· · disclosed, just the wrong dates were given.

21· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Correct.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, are there any

23· · questions for Mr. Jones?

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· First of all, this

25· · is Gronauer.
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·1· · · · · · · Fingerprints come back on him?

·2· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Yes, they did.

·3· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Okay.· And were

·4· · good?

·5· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Yeah.

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Morning,

·7· · Mr. Jones.

·8· · · · · · · MR. JONES:· Good morning, sir.

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Okay.· What do you

10· · plan on doing with the work card if you're approved?

11· · · · · · · MR. JONES:· I'm trying to be a security

12· · guard.

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· I can't understand

14· · you.

15· · · · · · · MR. JONES:· Trying to be a security guard.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Do you have any

17· · prospects?

18· · · · · · · MR. JONES:· The Circa and The Plaza.

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

21· · for the Board?· Hearing there are no questions, I'll

22· · entertain a motion.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

24· · Cortez.

25· · · · · · · Motion to approve Mr. Harold Jones, his
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·1· · appeal.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

·3· · we have a second?

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, seconds.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

·6· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·7· · · · · (All present Board members voted aye.)

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

·9· · · · · · · You'll get your card.· The office will

10· · contact you with further steps.· And I do, you

11· · know -- really, so everybody understands.  I

12· · appreciate that you disclosed your arrest.· And not

13· · knowing the date, even though you didn't know the

14· · date, it was incorrect, at least you disclosed it.

15· · We can find that out later.· We do appreciate that,

16· · so thank you, very much, sir.

17· · · · · · · MR. JONES:· Yes, ma'am.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 30,

19· · Brian Jakovich.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Mr. Jakovich is up

21· · north and he's approaching the podium.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.

23· · · · · · · Good morning, Mr. Jakovich.

24· · · · · · · Mr. Swarthout, could you tell us why we're

25· · here for Mr. Jakovich?
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·1· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

·2· · denied for a conviction of the illegal use,

·3· · possession of a dangerous weapon March 11, 1981 out

·4· · of California.· Misdemeanor CCW in vehicle.· He was

·5· · sentenced to 36 months probation and a fine of $65.

·6· · He did provide court documents with his appeal

·7· · dealing with this case.

·8· · · · · · · And then he had another arrest, May 31st,

·9· · 2020 out of California.· This one, also, was

10· · disclosed.· And it was for exhibiting a deadly

11· · weapon not a firearm in violation of civil rights

12· · with force or threat, and that case was dismissed.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, are

14· · there any questions for Mr. Jakovich?

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

16· · Cortez.

17· · · · · · · Mr. Jakovich, could you talk to me about

18· · the 2020 incident?· I do understand that it was

19· · dismissed; however, I'd like to hear your story of

20· · what occurred.

21· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· This is the May 31st, you

22· · said?

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· That is correct.

24· · 2020.

25· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· Yes, ma'am.
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·1· · · · · · · I was living in Oregon, leaving Crescent

·2· · City Home Depot.· It was the fifth morning of the

·3· · BLM riots.· I was legally carrying a firearm

·4· · concealed in my vehicle.

·5· · · · · · · And as I drove past the line of

·6· · protesters, you know, I felt harassed, just like I'm

·7· · sure everybody else here.

·8· · · · · · · And it was a warm day and I heard -- I was

·9· · called some racial names.· And I yelled back and

10· · that was it.· And then a light turned red and I

11· · grabbed my cell phone, snapped two pictures that I

12· · still have, and thought nothing of it.· Never, ever,

13· · ever touched my concealed firearm.· There's no

14· · point.· I have 100 protesters on a sidewalk.· No

15· · point, no threat.· And I was concealed.

16· · · · · · · And the next thing I know, I'm about to

17· · cross back into Oregon, in which I have my CCW for

18· · five different states.· And next thing I know, I

19· · have two CHPs behind me coming Code 3.· And I just

20· · had a feeling they were there for me.· I pulled into

21· · the parking lot, was arrested at gunpoint, charged

22· · with brandishing a firearm.· And PC 4226A,

23· · disrupting a protest.

24· · · · · · · I owned a 1981 conviction.· I was in a

25· · ranch truck, just had a pistol under the seat.  I
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·1· · was 18 years old.· I was stupid.· Didn't know any

·2· · better.· I was out in the country.· But this one was

·3· · just not fair.· All I did was drive by, they yelled

·4· · at me, I yelled something back, and next thing I

·5· · know, I was arrested at gunpoint and it was an

·6· · 18-month nightmare just for running my mouth and

·7· · exercising my First Amendment right.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay.· Thank you, so

·9· · much.

10· · · · · · · Investigator Swarthout, could you -- do

11· · you have the police report with you?

12· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Not -- we don't

13· · have the police report in that case.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Do you have any

15· · information as far as what was the exhibit of the

16· · deadly weapon?· Because on here the charge is not a

17· · firearm, but --

18· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· That's all the

19· · prints and all the paperwork that he provided from

20· · California.· That's all it says, that it was not a

21· · firearm, just a deadly weapon.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay.· Thank you.

23· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· May I add?· It was a DA

24· · reject that the prosecutor never filed charges.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I see that,
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·1· · Mr. Jakovich.

·2· · · · · · · My concern was, is that you kept -- you

·3· · continuously indicated that you had your registered

·4· · firearm; however, your charge was exhibited deadly

·5· · weapon not a firearm.· So I'm wondering, did you

·6· · have anything else on you?· Did you have a dagger?

·7· · When you said that you yelled out explicits (sic)

·8· · back?· And you said you took your phone --

·9· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· No, ma'am.· I never touched

10· · my firearm.· It was just a complete fabrication by

11· · three African-American women that just made this up.

12· · Just because I ran my mouth at the -- I made the

13· · mistake of opening my mouth at the stoplight as I

14· · went by.

15· · · · · · · And I was a complete victim of that,

16· · ma'am, with all respect.· It was -- 18 months of my

17· · life was on hold.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay, thank you.

19· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· Madam Chair,

20· · if I could.· Director Saladino, for the record.

21· · · · · · · Being that the situation with the BLM and

22· · the protesters, they could have charged him with the

23· · deadly weapon not a firearm because of his vehicle,

24· · being that he was driving through.· The protesters

25· · probably mentioned to CHP that almost hit them or
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·1· · something to that effect.· That's probably why they

·2· · charged it as not a firearm.

·3· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· I was, with all respect,

·4· · charged with PC 422.6(A) terrorist threats and PC

·5· · 417(a), brandishing a firearm.· Which was all

·6· · complete false allegations.· With all respect.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

·8· · for the Board?

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

10· · Cortez.

11· · · · · · · I do have one last question.· What are

12· · your intentions if you were to get this guard card?

13· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· It's my -- I used to have

14· · my work card in California.· I was -- I worked for

15· · California Department of Corrections 30 years.  I

16· · retired in 2012.· I had a long career.· And I used

17· · to work -- had my guard card in California, used to

18· · do high-end moonlighting, do high-end celebrity

19· · work.· So I'd like to get back into that.· I already

20· · have a job offer from Joe at Triumph Protection to

21· · do high-end security for him.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Is that armed or

23· · unarmed?

24· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· It would be armed, yes.· It

25· · would be armed.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I'm going to be

·2· · honest with you.· I do have a little bit of concern.

·3· · I understand that it was dismissed.· However, you're

·4· · going to get into a position where you are going to

·5· · come face-to-face with individuals of color.· That

·6· · you, being white, may also, again, say racial

·7· · comments back to you.· My question is, how are you

·8· · going to --

·9· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· -- explain that --

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Hang on one second,

11· · please.

12· · · · · · · How are you going to handle that if you

13· · get called yet another racial slur and you are in an

14· · armed position?

15· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· With all respect, ma'am.

16· · The last 15 years of my career I was a state parole

17· · agent, ran fugitive apprehension team.· I've had

18· · many African-Americans work for me.· I've never had

19· · a problem.· I'm not prejudiced in any way.

20· · · · · · · That BLM thing was just a terrible

21· · incident that happened.· Race had nothing to do with

22· · it, as far as I was concerned.· They called me an

23· · F-ing redneck, and, yes, they got a reaction as I

24· · went by, with all respect.

25· · · · · · · I've been in many, many life-threatening
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·1· · situations, many officer involved shootings,

·2· · directly, indirectly.· I was CAD rated at the

·3· · academy for 12 years.· Taught five different

·4· · tactical classes.· And I would believe I would be an

·5· · extreme asset to your industry and whatever company

·6· · hired me.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Understood.· Thank

·8· · you.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

10· · for the Board?

11· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· No ma'am.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Hearing there are no

13· · further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

15· · · · · · · I move that Mr. Jakovich be granted his

16· · work card based on full disclosure of information.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

18· · I have a second?

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I have a motion, I

21· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

22· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

24· · · · · · · Sir, you will get your work card.· The

25· · office will contact you shortly.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. JAKOVICH:· Thank you, very much.  I

·2· · appreciate your time.· Thank you, very much.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.· Good luck

·4· · to you.

·5· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 31, Sean Wilson.· Is

·6· · Mr. Wilson in here?

·7· · · · · · · Good morning, sir.

·8· · · · · · · MR. WILSON:· Good morning.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator

10· · Swarthout, could you tell us why we're here for

11· · Mr. Wilson?

12· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· So, the applicant

13· · was denied due to a felony conviction.· June 2nd,

14· · 2008 out of California, second degree burglary and

15· · violation of parole.· The applicant received three

16· · years Wasco State Prison.

17· · · · · · · December 18th, 2005 out of California,

18· · felony conviction for grand theft from person;

19· · received 16 months prison.

20· · · · · · · November 6, 2016 out of Nevada, DUI,

21· · misdemeanor.

22· · · · · · · And then August 12th, 2013 out of

23· · California, misdemeanor possession of controlled

24· · substance.

25· · · · · · · The applicant was previously denied, and
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·1· · this is his second time coming before the Board.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, are there any

·3· · questions for Mr. Wilson?

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Morning,

·5· · Mr. Wilson.

·6· · · · · · · MR. WILSON:· Good morning.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· You were denied

·8· · last time for failed to disclosure arrest, correct?

·9· · · · · · · MR. WILSON:· Yes, sir.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· I appreciate you

11· · coming back and disclosing everything and doing what

12· · you're asked to do.

13· · · · · · · MR. WILSON:· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Wish more people

15· · would do that.· Thank you.

16· · · · · · · MR. WILSON:· You're welcome.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

18· · for the Board?· Hearing there's no questions, I'll

19· · entertain a motion.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

21· · · · · · · Motion to grant the appeal of Sean Wilson

22· · who applied for registration and was denied.

23· · Reason, that he did all the stuff he was required to

24· · do.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So we have a motion.
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·1· · Do we have a second?

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

·4· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·5· · · · · · · (All present Board members voted aye.)

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Congratulations, sir.

·7· · · · · · · Thank you, again, for doing everything

·8· · you're supposed to and coming back.· We appreciate

·9· · it.· Good luck to you.

10· · · · · · · The office will contact you shortly.

11· · · · · · · MR. WILSON:· Thank you.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 32,

13· · Daniel Mundo.

14· · · · · · · MR. MUNDO:· Mundo.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Mundo.

16· · · · · · · Investigator Swarthout -- good morning to

17· · you.

18· · · · · · · Investigator Swarthout, why are we here

19· · for Mr. Mundo?

20· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

21· · denied due to felony conviction June 19th, 2013 out

22· · of Nevada.· Conspiracy to commit robbery.· Sentenced

23· · to 24 to 60 months NDOC.

24· · · · · · · March 13th, 2012 out of California.· Two

25· · counts of robbery, second degree.· Sentence on the
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·1· · first count was 12 months prison, second count was

·2· · 36 months prison to run concurrent.

·3· · · · · · · The applicant also did provide paperwork

·4· · showing that he was no longer on parole out of

·5· · California.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, any

·7· · questions for Mr. Mundo?

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·9· · Cortez.

10· · · · · · · I actually have a question for

11· · Investigator Swarthout.

12· · · · · · · When you indicated the paperwork for

13· · termination of parole was received, what date was

14· · probation terminated, and was it terminated

15· · positively?

16· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· It looks like

17· · from the paperwork it was terminated on June 23,

18· · 2022.· And it looks like -- it doesn't say that it

19· · was a bad discharge, it looks like it was a normal

20· · discharge.

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Mr. Mundo, did you

22· · complete all of your requirements with parole?

23· · · · · · · MR. MUNDO:· Yes, ma'am.

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Was it a successful

25· · completion?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. MUNDO:· Yes, ma'am.

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Was it?

·3· · · · · · · MR. MUNDO:· Yes, ma'am.

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Morning,

·6· · Mr. Mundo.· This is Gronauer.· You're not on paper

·7· · now?

·8· · · · · · · MR. MUNDO:· No, sir.

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Because it says

10· · three years.· 2019, 2022, okay.

11· · · · · · · That's all, thank you.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Have you put in

13· · applications already for employment --

14· · · · · · · MR. MUNDO:· Yes, ma'am.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· -- working towards

16· · that?

17· · · · · · · MS. SULLIVAN:· I actually have a company

18· · that wants to hire me for security unarmed.  I

19· · believe the company is called Sentinel.· So I'm

20· · hoping to get my card (indiscernible).

21· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Get your card?

22· · · · · · · MR. MUNDO:· Yes, ma'am.

23· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Thank you.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, if

25· · there's no further questions, I'll entertain a
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·1· · motion.

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

·3· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

·4· · · · · · · Go ahead, Mr. Gronauer.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Okay.· Go ahead

·6· · Katherine.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·8· · Cortez.

·9· · · · · · · I'm going to motion that we approve

10· · Mr. Mundo his appeal for the registration card based

11· · on full disclosure and that he is no longer actively

12· · on parole.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

14· · we have a second?

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

17· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

18· · · · · (All present Board members voted aye.)

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

20· · · · · · · So you will be granted your work card.

21· · The office will contact you shortly, okay?

22· · · · · · · MR. MUNDO:· Thank you, very much.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good luck to you.

24· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 33, Lisa Doggans.

25· · · · · · · MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSINSKI:· Good
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·1· · morning.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good morning.

·3· · · · · · · Just to verify, you've been sworn in?

·4· · · · · · · MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSINSKI:· Yes.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Investigator

·6· · Swarthout, why are we here for Ms. Doggans?

·7· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

·8· · denied for a felony conviction and for failure to

·9· · disclose.

10· · · · · · · January 26th, 1993 out of Connecticut,

11· · credit card fraud in connection with an Axis device.

12· · She was sentenced to serve time served, six months

13· · house arrest, three years supervised release.· This

14· · arrest was by the U.S. Secret Service.

15· · · · · · · And then in December 26, 1992 out of

16· · California, this arrest wasn't disclosed, it's a

17· · felony conviction for grand theft of Axis card, sell

18· · with intent to defraud.· Convicted to three years

19· · probation and 181 days jail, suspended.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Any questions

21· · for Ms. Doggans?

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board member

23· · Cortez.· Is it Jagodsinski?

24· · · · · · · MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSINSKI:· Yes.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Why did you fail to
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·1· · disclose the 1992 conviction?

·2· · · · · · · MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSINSKI:· I thought I

·3· · put them together.· Because they were ran concurrent

·4· · into one case.· And I thought I did disclose the

·5· · whole story as best I could in the information

·6· · that -- or lines that were provided.· I believe that

·7· · I said something about it, because they were back to

·8· · back, ran concurrent into one case.

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay.

10· · · · · · · Investigator Swarthout, is that the -- one

11· · was in December of '92, the other one was January.

12· · Was the case concurrent?

13· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· On the PACER

14· · record, it didn't show if it ran concurrent from the

15· · federal courts.· They're both similar charges and

16· · around the same time, so that could be why she

17· · thought she did disclose it, because...

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay.· Were you able

19· · to pay off that fine?

20· · · · · · · MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSINSKI:· Yes.

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· You did?· Okay.

22· · · · · · · What are your plans with your guard card,

23· · should you be granted one?

24· · · · · · · MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSINSKI:· Well, I

25· · sell real estate in California and Nevada.· And my
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·1· · grandkids are here, so I started to look for

·2· · part-time gigs to help me to pay for all of the real

·3· · estate fees.

·4· · · · · · · And I heard about Best.· They do Rhino

·5· · Staging, different things.· In between selling real

·6· · estate.

·7· · · · · · · So when I heard about Best, I filled out

·8· · the application, and then they told me to go get

·9· · fingerprinted.· And I found out there that I was

10· · going to need to do a (indiscernible).

11· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· To do a what?

12· · · · · · · MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSINSKI:· To do the

13· · whole appeal process to get a card.· I had no idea.

14· · And then, I'm 59 this month.· And I think I might

15· · have been 25, -6 or something back then.· So it's

16· · kind of -- it's been so long.· It's a whole other

17· · lifetime.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, Investigator

19· · Swarthout, just to make sure.· She did disclose one

20· · portion of it when she was doing her initial

21· · application.· It was the second one that --

22· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· That is correct.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· -- may have run

24· · concurrently.· Okay, got you.

25· · · · · · · MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSINSKI:· They did
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·1· · run it concurrent, though, from Connecticut.· One

·2· · was in California and the other in Connecticut.· And

·3· · they brought it together to send me back to

·4· · California to do all the probation and all --

·5· · everything.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

·7· · · · · · · Board, any further questions?· Hearing

·8· · there are no further questions, I'll entertain a

·9· · motion.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer.

11· · · · · · · I make a motion for -- to approve the

12· · appeal of Lisa Doggans Farr Jargodsinski for time

13· · and distance.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

15· · we have a second?

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

18· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

19· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

21· · · · · · · The office will contact you for next

22· · steps.

23· · · · · · · I apologize for not seeing the last

24· · portion of your name.· But, yeah, good luck to you.

25· · · · · · · MS. DOGGANS FARR JAGODSINSKI:· Thank you.
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You're welcome.

·2· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 34, Antoinette Johnson.

·3· · · · · · · Just to confirm, you are -- did you get

·4· · sworn in?

·5· · · · · · · MS. JOHNSON:· Yes.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

·7· · · · · · · Mr. Swarthout, why are we here for

·8· · Ms. Johnson?

·9· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

10· · denied for a felony conviction.

11· · · · · · · January 1st, 2003 out of California,

12· · felony possess, purchase cocaine base for sale.

13· · Sentenced five years prison.

14· · · · · · · January 8th of 2002 out of Nevada, felony

15· · conviction for conspiracy to violate Uniform

16· · Controlled Substances Act.· Sentenced to 12 to 30

17· · months, Nevada State Prison.· Credit for 155 days

18· · served.

19· · · · · · · October 5th, 2001 out of California,

20· · felony conviction for possess, purchase cocaine base

21· · for sale.· Sentenced to five years prison.

22· · · · · · · April 8th, 1989 out of California, felony

23· · conviction for transportation, sale controlled

24· · substance.· 30 days jail, 48 months probation.

25· · · · · · · February 3rd, 2011 out of California,



Page 73
·1· · misdemeanor DUI.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· And all of

·3· · these were disclosed?

·4· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Yes.· She

·5· · disclosed all of them and listed a whole bunch of

·6· · stuff and all the charges out of that were the

·7· · initial charges, but those were the convicted

·8· · charges.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, any questions

10· · for --

11· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

12· · · · · · · Morning, Ms. Johnson.

13· · · · · · · MS. JOHNSON:· Good morning.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Your past history

15· · with drugs, being involved in drugs, have you

16· · completed any drug programs?

17· · · · · · · MS. JOHNSON:· Yes, I have.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· How long ago?

19· · · · · · · MS. JOHNSON:· I don't even remember how

20· · long, it's been so long ago.· I don't know.· It's

21· · been a long time.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Okay.· What do you

23· · do now?

24· · · · · · · MS. JOHNSON:· I do in-home support service

25· · for veterans.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· I'm sorry, I

·2· · didn't hear you.

·3· · · · · · · MS. JOHNSON:· In-home support service for

·4· · veterans.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Do you have any

·6· · more problems with drugs now?

·7· · · · · · · MS. JOHNSON:· No.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· I'm good.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any other questions

10· · for the Board?· Hearing there's no questions, I'll

11· · entertain a motion.

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

13· · Cortez.

14· · · · · · · I'm going to motion that we approve

15· · Ms. Antoinette Johnson her appeal for the guard card

16· · based on full disclosure and time and distance.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

18· · we have a second?

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

21· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

22· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, motion is granted.

24· · You will get your work card.· The office will

25· · contact you with next steps, okay?
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·1· · · · · · · MS. JOHNSON:· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.· Good luck

·3· · to you.

·4· · · · · · · No. 35, Lewis Evans.

·5· · · · · · · Please confirm, sir, you've been sworn in?

·6· · · · · · · MR. EVANS:· Yes.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Mr. Swarthout --

·8· · Investigator Swarthout, why are we here for

·9· · Mr. Evans?

10· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

11· · denied for a felony weapons conviction and for

12· · failure to disclose arrest history.

13· · · · · · · February 23rd, 1995 out of California,

14· · felony, willful discharge firearm in grossly

15· · negligent manner.· And then attempted grand theft of

16· · money.· The applicant was convicted to three years'

17· · misdemeanor probation with formal felony

18· · supervision.· The applicant did get the felony

19· · charge reduced by PC 17(b) out of California and was

20· · granted a 1203.4 dismissal in this case.

21· · · · · · · The applicant was made provisional because

22· · on his original application he did not disclose this

23· · arrest history.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, any questions

25· · for Mr. Evans?
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·2· · Cortez.

·3· · · · · · · Mr. Evans, why did you fail to disclose

·4· · your conviction?

·5· · · · · · · MR. EVANS:· I didn't know I had to,

·6· · because I was -- this happened 30 years ago.· And I

·7· · had an expungement and I thought it was removed.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Did you fill out the

·9· · application yourself?

10· · · · · · · MR. EVANS:· Yes, I did.

11· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Did you go through

12· · every page nice and slow?

13· · · · · · · MR. EVANS:· No, I didn't.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· The reason I'm

15· · asking you is, there's one page where it has a nice

16· · big red stop sign.· And right under that it says to

17· · list all convictions, regardless of the disposition,

18· · regardless of the California PC code of the

19· · dismissal.

20· · · · · · · MR. EVANS:· Right.· I didn't...

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· You missed that

22· · whole page.

23· · · · · · · MR. EVANS:· I was not aware of that.

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· You're killing me.

25· · · · · · · All right.· No further questions.· Thank
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·1· · you.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

·3· · for Mr. Evans?· Hearing there are no further

·4· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

·6· · · · · · · I move we deny the appeal for Mr. Evans

·7· · based on failure to disclose criminal history.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

·9· · motion.· Do we have a second?

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have motion, we a

12· · second.· All in favor say aye.

13· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, unfortunately, it

15· · does not pass.

16· · · · · · · Again, the application is very clear, and

17· · it states you have to disclose all issues with law

18· · enforcement.· So that transparency is important.

19· · · · · · · You are able to apply again in a year,

20· · just like the first gentleman that came up.

21· · Hopefully you will come back and see us in that time

22· · frame.· Sorry about that, but good luck to you, sir.

23· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 36, Angelica Gomez.· Okay.

24· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· Good morning.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good morning.· Have
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·1· · you been sworn in?· Are you under oath?

·2· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· I'm not sure.

·3

·4· · · · · · · · · · · ·ANGELICA GOMEZ,

·5· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

·6· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

·7

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator

·9· · Swarthout, why are we here for Ms. Gomez?

10· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

11· · denied for failure to disclose.

12· · · · · · · November 5th, 2005 out of California,

13· · dealing smuggling driver, repeat violation of USC --

14· · I'm not going to finish all that long number for it,

15· · transporting aliens.· It was an arrest only by CBP

16· · at one of their stations.

17· · · · · · · October 6, 2005 out of California,

18· · misdemeanor, two counts of willful cruelty to a

19· · child that was dismissed.

20· · · · · · · January 6, 2003 out of California, felony,

21· · alien smuggling.· Arrest only at the CBP station.

22· · · · · · · November 3rd, 2002 out of California,

23· · felony, alien smuggling.· It was an arrest only out

24· · of the CBP station.

25· · · · · · · September 21st, 2001 out of California,
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·1· · felony, failure -- or fraud to obtain, (a) perjury.

·2· · This it was a warrant arrest that applicant was

·3· · asked to provide court documents for this charge.

·4· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· May I just say --

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Hang on one second.

·6· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· Sorry.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sure.

·8· · · · · · · Board, any questions for Ms. Gomez?

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

10· · Cortez.

11· · · · · · · I actually have a question for

12· · Investigator Swarthout.· What's CSC?

13· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· It is one of our

14· · licensees Contemporary Services Corporation.· They

15· · paid for her application.· She was working for two

16· · companies already on their roster when we denied the

17· · card.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· When they paid for

19· · the application, does that mean -- who filled it

20· · out?

21· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· She would have

22· · filled it out.· And for them doing it, they fill it

23· · out and then they give it to somebody and they type

24· · it up and submit paper.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Understood.· Thank
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·1· · you.

·2· · · · · · · This is Board Member Cortez.

·3· · · · · · · Ms. Gomez, good morning.· Why did you fail

·4· · to disclose all of your convictions?

·5· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· The truth is, I never put it

·6· · in any application.· Since I did housekeeping for a

·7· · whole nine years, never asked for anything.· Since

·8· · it was, like, 18 years ago, I never put it anywhere.

·9· · I did not think to put it.· It never crossed my

10· · mind.· I swear it didn't cross my mind at all.

11· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· You filled the

12· · application yourself --

13· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· I filled the application, yes.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I don't know if you

15· · heard my question earlier with the gentleman that

16· · just appeared before you, but there is a page where

17· · it has a nice big red stop sign.· And says the

18· · following page, you need to list all of your

19· · convictions.

20· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· The truth is, I don't remember

21· · seeing that one.· Since it was in California, I

22· · don't remember seeing that big stop sign.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· It's online and also

24· · the paper application.

25· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· I did have the paper, yes.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay.

·2· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· Can I just say something?

·3· · Real fast?

·4· · · · · · · The two last ones --

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Ma'am --

·6· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· Those are not mine.· I had

·7· · identity theft a while ago.· Those two are not mine,

·8· · the last ones.· The two last ones.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· That's something that

10· · you're going to have to clear up with the court.

11· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· I'm trying to do that, yes.

12· · I'm on that right now, trying to clear that up.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay, all right.

14· · Thank you.

15· · · · · · · Any further questions for the Board?

16· · Hearing there's no questions, I'll entertain a

17· · motion.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

19· · Cortez motioning to uphold the denial based on the

20· · nondisclosure of any conviction.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

22· · we have a second?

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· We

25· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.
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·1· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, the motion passes.

·3· · You will not be given your work card because you did

·4· · not disclose all of your arrest history on your

·5· · application.

·6· · · · · · · You can come back and see us in a year,

·7· · fill out your application again, speak with the

·8· · office, they'll help you go through that.· But

·9· · they'll probably ask for documentation and

10· · paperwork.· And as long as you disclose, you

11· · shouldn't -- you know, I'm not telling you you'll

12· · get through, but disclose everything, okay?

13· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· Okay.· Southern California --

14· · how do I do that over here?

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You can call the

16· · office.· They'll help you.

17· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· PILB?

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Yes.

19· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· Thank you.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.

21· · · · · · · MS. GOMEZ:· Thank you.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 37,

23· · Robert Esquivel postponed.· We will see him later.

24· · Agenda Item No. 38 Anthony Hutchison.

25· · · · · · · Good morning, sir.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Morning.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator

·3· · Swarthout, why are we here for Mr. Hutchison?

·4· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

·5· · denied for a felony conviction and for -- and

·6· · illegal use or possession of a dangerous weapon.

·7· · · · · · · On December 2nd, 2021 out of Nevada,

·8· · misdemeanor carry, conceal weapon without a permit,

·9· · disorderly conduct.· Guilty on both counts.

10· · · · · · · January 17th, 2021 out of Nevada,

11· · misdemeanor carry concealed weapon without a permit.

12· · Guilty, time served.

13· · · · · · · August 11, 2016 out of Nevada, felony,

14· · attempted embezzlement.· Sentenced to 12 to 32

15· · months NDOC to run concurrent with the other case.

16· · · · · · · July 17th, 2014, out of Nevada, felony,

17· · attempted burglary, sentenced to 24 to 60 months

18· · NDOC and four years probation.

19· · · · · · · February 25th, 2013 out of Nevada, felony,

20· · possess marijuana, one ounce.· But it is 50 pounds

21· · of marijuana.· Third offense DUI, possession

22· · controlled substance.· That charge was dismissed.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· And just to

24· · make sure I understand this -- none of this was

25· · disclosed?
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·1· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· They all were

·2· · disclosed.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· They were disclosed.

·4· · Okay, Thank you.

·5· · · · · · · Board, are there any questions?

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·7· · Cortez.

·8· · · · · · · Mr. Hutchison.

·9· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Yes, ma'am.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Why do we have so

11· · much contact with law enforcement?

12· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Just have a -- bad luck

13· · with law enforcement.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I'm sorry, one more

15· · time?

16· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Bad luck with law

17· · enforcement.· It's not like -- the time that I did

18· · get caught, that was -- wasn't mine, like, so my

19· · lawyer got the case -- I thought the charges was

20· · dismissed.· Even though I did disclose them, my case

21· · was dismissed.· I just --

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Are you talking

23· · about the 2023 case that was dismissed?

24· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· DUI.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· No, that would be
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·1· · for the marijuana charge.

·2· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Yes.

·3· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay.· Then let's

·4· · discuss the 2021, both in January, and then -- wait,

·5· · there might be a typo in the years.· No, it actually

·6· · could be -- yeah.

·7· · · · · · · Officer Swarthout -- or Investigator

·8· · Swarthout.· Nos. 1 and 2, I've got December of 2021

·9· · and then I've got January of 2021.

10· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· They -- on the

11· · fingerprints they're listed as two separate cases.

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Got it.· So let's

13· · discuss that.· The 2021.· Why is there so much law

14· · enforcement contact?

15· · · · · · · That one you were guilty on both counts,

16· · so it's not that it was a mistaken identity or

17· · somebody else's fault.· These, you have been found

18· · guilty of both counts.

19· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Yes, ma'am.

20· · · · · · · My reason is because I wasn't taking my

21· · life as serious as I should have been now because I

22· · know how it can affect me, like, now, basically

23· · trying to get a job.· It's kind of hard for me to

24· · get a job.· I do have offers from Allied Universal,

25· · and I do have the contact of the site supervisor if
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·1· · you would like to contact them.

·2· · · · · · · But I'm also a personal chef.· I just

·3· · bought me a food truck last week.· So I'm a personal

·4· · chef and I cater.· And have two kids.· So I made

·5· · some mistakes back when I was younger.· I understand

·6· · that's not too far --

·7· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Excuse me.· I understand

·8· · that?· And then what did you say?

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You have to slow down

10· · because she's taking -- she's a court reporter.

11· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Sorry, sorry.

12· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· I was just saying that I

13· · made some mistakes when I was younger and I

14· · understand mistakes that I've made and the choice

15· · that caused me to be where I am at.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Thank you.

17· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

18· · · · · · · Okay.· February 25th, 2023.· Interaction

19· · with law enforcement.· Possession, 50 pounds of

20· · marijuana, DUI third offense, possession of

21· · Schedule 1 and 2 controlled substance.· What was

22· · that about?

23· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· I didn't have 50 pounds of

24· · marijuana, sir.· I only had an eighth of weed, which

25· · is like 3.5 grams.· And I had my medical card when
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·1· · they searched me.· And I still have it on me as we

·2· · speak.· They didn't ask for that, but my lawyer had

·3· · presented that when we went to court.

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· What happened to

·5· · the DUI?

·6· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· The what?

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· The DUI.· Driving

·8· · under the influence.

·9· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Is that from 2021?

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Third offense.

11· · 2023.

12· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· That was what -- that was

13· · what they tried to call it, third offense, because

14· · they seen I had marijuana in the car but I was not

15· · smoking.· I was smoking a cigarette.· A different

16· · officer said he seen me spark up something but

17· · didn't know what it was.· So then that's when they

18· · made the -- made me pull over.· But I told them I

19· · had an eighth in my car.· And then they could have

20· · searched me, they pulled me out and they tried to

21· · conclude it as a third DUI because I already had two

22· · DUIs prior.· That's one that had said something

23· · about the 50 pounds of weed when it was only an

24· · eighth, and I had my medical card on me, present.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Okay.· You just
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·1· · stated that you made -- you were younger and you

·2· · made some mistakes.· This is nine years later and

·3· · you're still making mistakes, getting involved with

·4· · law enforcement.

·5· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· I just got a random pull

·6· · over and they assumed because I sparked a cigarette,

·7· · they assumed that I was sparking something else.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· A random pull

·9· · over?

10· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Yeah.· I was driving down

11· · the strip when I was smoking -- I sparked up a

12· · cigarette, and then they pulled me over

13· · because officer --

14· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Because the officer pulled

15· · me over?

16· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Huh?

17· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· You're speaking very

18· · quickly and I can't keep up.· You said the officer

19· · pulled me over.

20· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Yeah, but it was two

21· · different officers.· One officer said that seen me

22· · spark something but didn't know what it was.· So

23· · another officer -- he called that officer, and that

24· · officer pulled me over right across the street from

25· · the Venetian.· I was outside for about 45 minutes to
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·1· · an hour while they -- while I let them search my

·2· · car.· And I told them that I had weed in my glove

·3· · compartment, which was only an eighth.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator

·5· · Swarthout, how do they -- does it mention the 50

·6· · pounds?· I mean, how did that get to the 50 pounds?

·7· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· That is the

·8· · charge that they listed.· It could be because of

·9· · that, or it could be they had concentrated cannabis,

10· · the THC on.· All it says is possession of marijuana,

11· · less than 50 pounds.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Oh, less than 50

13· · pounds.· Okay.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

15· · Cortez.· To be quite honest with you, the DA denied

16· · the case back in 2023, but here's my bigger concern.

17· · · · · · · So in 2024 you caught yourself a case.

18· · And then you got yourself on probation for four

19· · years.· But then in 2016, you also caught an

20· · attempted embezzlement charge to run concurrently

21· · with the 2014.· Again, that would end your probation

22· · in 2018.

23· · · · · · · So I would like to believe that you

24· · learned some kind of lesson between 2014 and 2018.

25· · But then in 2021 you got two charges.· Carrying
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·1· · concealed weapon without a permit.· Not once, but

·2· · twice.· So I'm having a little hard time

·3· · understanding that you were young and then, you

·4· · know, now you learned.

·5· · · · · · · But let me back up.· There was also a 2020

·6· · DUI offense.· My problem is, that I'm not sure

·7· · you're quite understanding that you need to have

·8· · zero contact with law enforcement before you're

·9· · asking for a guard card.

10· · · · · · · There are certain standards that you are

11· · held to when you hold that guard card.· And when I'm

12· · looking at your record, you consistently have law

13· · enforcement contact.· That's a problem for me.

14· · · · · · · No further comment.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

16· · from the Board?· Hearing there are no further

17· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board member

19· · Cortez.

20· · · · · · · I'm going to motion that we uphold the

21· · denial based on time and distance.· Like I

22· · indicated, we have law enforcement contact as early

23· · as 2021.· I need to establish a little more time of

24· · consistency with no law enforcement contact.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So we have a motion.
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·1· · Do we have a second?

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So we have a motion,

·4· · we have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·5· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Unfortunately, at this

·7· · point you won't get your guard license.· I do

·8· · appreciate that you disclosed everything.· That's

·9· · what has to happen.· But unfortunately, the Board

10· · feels you need to have a little more time and

11· · distance between your last interaction or contact

12· · with law enforcement and when you're in front of the

13· · Board.· So you're more than welcome to come and see

14· · us again in a year.· Same with the first gentleman.

15· · He was able to come back and get his license.· So

16· · please work with the office.· They'll help support

17· · you in any way they can for your next application.

18· · · · · · · MR. HUTCHISON:· Thank you, so much.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.· Good luck

20· · to you.

21· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 39, Josiah Smith.

22· · · · · · · Good morning.· Investigator Swarthout,

23· · could you tell us why we're here for Mr. Smith?

24· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

25· · denied for a felony conviction.
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·1· · · · · · · We have an August 28, 2017 out of Hawaii

·2· · misdemeanor, promote a detrimental drug, third

·3· · degree prohibited acts.· That case was dismissed.

·4· · That one was not disclosed.

·5· · · · · · · June 20th, 2013 out of Hawaii.

·6· · Misdemeanor, theft, fourth degree, shoplifting.

·7· · Sentenced to three days.· That arrest was disclosed.

·8· · · · · · · March 7th, 2012 out of Hawaii.· Felony,

·9· · theft, forgery of card; theft, second degree.

10· · Sentence, five years confinement for both charges.

11· · And they ran concurrently.· That one was also

12· · disclosed.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, any

14· · questions for Mr. Smith?

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

16· · Cortez.

17· · · · · · · Mr. Smith, why did you fail to disclose

18· · the 2017 charge?

19· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· I honestly forgot about it.

20· · I'm not going to lie.· That was my fault.

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Did you forget that

22· · you had law enforcement contact.

23· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· Yes.· I know.· I just -- as he

24· · read it, I remembered it.· I thought I disclosed

25· · everything on there.· My main ones were the



Page 93
·1· · felonies, that's why I put those down, because

·2· · that's -- that was my mistake.

·3· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Were you

·4· · successfully terminated off parole?

·5· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· Yes, correct.

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Because I do see

·7· · that you had a couple violations.

·8· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· Yes, I did.· I completed

·9· · parole June 16, 2020.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· No contact with law

11· · enforcement since?

12· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· No.

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· What are your plans

14· · to do with the guard card if you're approved.

15· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· I would like to do security

16· · with it.· I have three students that run private

17· · security.· And I would like to do that.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

19· · from the Board?· Hearing there are no further

20· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

22· · · · · · · Deny the appeal -- motion is to deny the

23· · appeal for Josiah Smith for failure to fully

24· · disclose.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do
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·1· · we have a second?

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, second.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

·4· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·5· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

·7· · · · · · · So, unfortunately, because you didn't

·8· · disclose.· We appreciate the other stuff that you

·9· · disclose, but you have to get it all.· You're more

10· · than welcome to come back and see us --

11· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· I'll see you in a year.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Awesome.· We look

13· · forward to seeing you.

14· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· Thank you.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· What time was

16· · the second group supposed to come in, 11:30?· And

17· · that -- that's what number?

18· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· That's going

19· · to be 40.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Let's go back to

21· · Agenda Item No. 28 we trailed, Ms. Ratcliffe.

22· · · · · · · Good morning, ma'am.

23· · · · · · · MS. RATCLIFFE:· Good morning.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Have you been sworn

25· · in?
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·1· · · · · · · MS. RATCLIFFE:· No, I have not.

·2

·3· · · · · · · · · · ·KORTHARY RATCLIFFE,

·4· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

·5· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

·6

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator

·8· · Swarthout, why are we here for Ms. Ratcliffe?

·9· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

10· · denied for a felony conviction.

11· · · · · · · May 20th, 1996 out of Minnesota, felony,

12· · theft, $500.

13· · · · · · · Convicted out of Minnesota, August 6th,

14· · 1992, felony financial charge, credit card fraud.

15· · She was sentenced to six months to one year -- one

16· · year, one day in prison, suspended, probation three

17· · years.

18· · · · · · · October 20th of 1987 out of Minnesota.

19· · Offering forged check.· 60 days jail, suspended, two

20· · years probation.

21· · · · · · · March 16th, 2004, gross misdemeanor out of

22· · Minnesota for theft.

23· · · · · · · January 20th, 2004 out of Minnesota.

24· · Misdemeanor false information to police.· She was

25· · given probation for that one.
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·1· · · · · · · November 9th, 1996 out of Minnesota.

·2· · Disorderly conduct, misdemeanor, convicted.

·3· · · · · · · January 1st, 1986, out of Illinois,

·4· · misdemeanor possession of marijuana, two days jail.

·5· · · · · · · December 3rd, 1985, out of Illinois,

·6· · misdemeanor prosecution.· That charge was dismissed.

·7· · · · · · · October 28th, 1984 out of Illinois,

·8· · misdemeanor shoplifting.· Convicted, two days jail.

·9· · · · · · · August 19th, 1984 out of Illinois,

10· · misdemeanor retail theft, two days jail.

11· · · · · · · The applicant did disclose all of her

12· · arrests on her application and was not made

13· · provisional.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Fantastic.· Board, any

15· · questions for Ms. Ratcliffe?

16· · · · · · · Hearing there are no questions, I'll

17· · entertain a motion.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

19· · Cortez motioning to approve Ms. Ratcliffe's appeal

20· · based on full disclosure of convictions.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

22· · we have a second?

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

25· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.
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·1· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

·3· · · · · · · You will get your work card.· The office

·4· · will contact you with next steps, okay?

·5· · · · · · · MS. RATCLIFFE:· Okay.· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You're welcome.· Good

·7· · luck to you.

·8· · · · · · · So, we're now in the second half, Agenda

·9· · Item No. 40, Aaron Miller.

10· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· Madam Chair,

11· · Director Saladino, for the record.

12· · · · · · · This next group was told to be here at

13· · 11:30.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sorry.· We'll go ahead

15· · and take a short recess and then come back -- take

16· · those guys?

17· · · · · · · All right, let's clear the room.· Let's

18· · see.· Let's go around.· Sir, what number are you?

19· · Agenda Item No.?

20· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· Me?

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Yes.

22· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· 73.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, what agenda item

24· · are you?

25· · · · · · · MS. RATCLIFFE:· Not sure.· 53.
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· 53?

·2· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE:· What's your name?

·3· · · · · · · MR. QUINTANA:· Henry Quintana.

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· 51.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, what agenda item

·6· · are you?

·7· · · · · · · MR. MILLER:· Agenda, not sure, but it's

·8· · Ryan Seegmiller.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Ryan?

10· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE:· Ryan Seegmiller?

11· · · · · · · MR. SEEGMILLER:· Seegmiller.

12· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE:· 49.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, what agenda item

14· · are you?

15· · · · · · · MR. WILLIAMS:· I don't know what that is,

16· · but my name is Dejonte Williams.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· All right.· So we will

18· · go in order.· That means Dejonte Williams.

19· · · · · · · Sir, if you could come up.· Sir, if you

20· · will -- is there anybody in the room that has not

21· · been sworn in yet?

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Have you been sworn

23· · in, sir?· Because I don't recall you standing up

24· · last time.

25· · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED AUDIENCE MEMBER:· Yeah, I was
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·1· · here in the morning.· Do I need to stand every time?

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· No, not every time,

·3· · but I don't recall seeing you.

·4· · · · · · · UNIDENTIFIED AUDIENCE MEMBER:· I'll stand

·5· · again.

·6

·7· · · · · · · · · · · AUDIENCE MEMBERS,

·8· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

·9· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

10

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you, sir.

12· · · · · · · So, Investigator Swarthout, why are we

13· · here for Mr. Williams?

14· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

15· · denied for a conviction of a felony, illegal use of

16· · possession of weapon and failure to disclose arrest

17· · history.

18· · · · · · · August 27, 2006 out of California.

19· · Felony, assault with a stun gun taser.· Sentenced to

20· · two years' prison.

21· · · · · · · March 31st, 2016 out of California.

22· · Misdemeanor, obstructing, et cetera, public officer.

23· · That case -- that charge was dismissed.

24· · · · · · · December 10th, 2004 out of California.

25· · Felony, force with a deadly weapon not a firearm.
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·1· · The applicant was a minor for that one.

·2· · · · · · · May 8th, 2003 out of California.· Battery

·3· · on school employee, threat, criminal intent to

·4· · terrorize, obstruct public officer.· Also a minor on

·5· · that one.

·6· · · · · · · July 18th, 1997 out of California.

·7· · Felony, burglary.· The applicant was also a minor

·8· · for that case.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· But just to be

10· · clear, we didn't disclose any of the arrest history.

11· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· He did not

12· · disclose any of it.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, are there any

14· · questions for Mr. Williams?

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

16· · Cortez.

17· · · · · · · Mr. Williams, why did we fail to disclose

18· · any conviction?

19· · · · · · · MR. WILLIAMS:· My reasoning why I didn't

20· · disclose that was because I've been doing security

21· · work for the last four, almost five years in

22· · California.· And in California, they say anything

23· · longer than seven years you don't have to put --

24· · check the box that you have a felony.

25· · · · · · · So since I already previously had a guard
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·1· · card, private officer card, I went ahead and

·2· · followed suit and did the same thing here.· Because

·3· · this is my first time moving to Las Vegas.· Moving

·4· · with my company.· So this happening just kind of

·5· · shockwave.· I was hoping I could get my card back so

·6· · I can get back to work.

·7· · · · · · · But I apologize for -- you know, I don't

·8· · know the laws in Nevada.· I'm really sorry for it.

·9· · I don't want to lie to you guys about anything.· But

10· · I was just following what I thought was right.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Did you fill out your

12· · application, sir?

13· · · · · · · MR. WILLIAMS:· Yes, ma'am.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Because in the

15· · application it does state in there there's a --

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· There's a nice, big

17· · stop sign.

18· · · · · · · MR. WILLIAMS:· I seen -- I seen the -- on

19· · the paperwork.· But like I said, I was going off of

20· · how California is, you know.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· This is Nevada.· So

22· · that was a difference.· That's why we put it on

23· · there, the big stop sign so you make sure you read

24· · this.· Understand, any arrest, any convictions, any

25· · anything, all right?· So, it's not California.· It's
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·1· · a little bit different.· So that's why we try to

·2· · make it as obvious as possible for you to stop and

·3· · make sure you read.

·4· · · · · · · Any further questions for the Board?

·5· · Hearing there are no further questions, I'll

·6· · entertain a motion.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

·8· · · · · · · I move we uphold denial for Mr. Williams

·9· · based on nondisclosure of criminal history.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

11· · motion, do we have a second?

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

14· · motion, we have a second.· All in favor say aye.

15· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So unfortunately, you

17· · won't get your guard card.· Again, it's very clear

18· · in the application.· We do everything that we can to

19· · make sure that everybody understands the process.

20· · · · · · · MR. WILLIAMS:· Sorry, you guys.· But, you

21· · know, due to this happening -- I moved out here with

22· · my company.· And the job that's available to me is

23· · not enough for me to make it.· So I'm kind of -- I'm

24· · in a hole where I might be losing everything that I

25· · worked so hard for, you know.· And I'm -- really



Page 103
·1· · apologize that the application, I didn't see it on

·2· · there.· But I really don't have really no other

·3· · choice.· I'm pretty much losing everything.  I

·4· · worked hard.

·5· · · · · · · Like, I understand that I have a juvenile

·6· · record and, you know, a past life, but I turned it

·7· · around.· You know, I've been walking straight path.

·8· · I even filed paperwork with the governor of

·9· · California to be pardoned so that I can go farther

10· · than my career.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We understand that.

12· · And we do appreciate what you're going through,

13· · right?· I do get that.

14· · · · · · · The unfortunate part is, we have to remain

15· · consistent with what we do.· If we do it for you,

16· · then we have to do it for the next person and next

17· · person and then we've kind of lost control of the

18· · standard, right?

19· · · · · · · So my suggestion is, there's a lot of

20· · opportunity out here in Las Vegas beyond security.

21· · · · · · · MR. WILLIAMS:· I'm going to be honest with

22· · you.· I've been trying to get -- I just been fired

23· · from two jobs because the employer felt like I

24· · wasn't being good fit.· But I was doing a great job.

25· · And I'm not -- I'm really not steady about it, and
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·1· · really feel like -- I'm just hurting because I'm

·2· · losing my life, you know.· And I -- I don't have no

·3· · family out here.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I can appreciate that,

·5· · I really can.· This is a tough town.· Just --

·6· · seriously, you will make it.· You've done great

·7· · things with what you've done so far.· So keep your

·8· · head up and don't let this define you, okay?

·9· · · · · · · MR. WILLIAMS:· Trying.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I believe that you

11· · can.

12· · · · · · · But definitely, there's opportunity out

13· · here.· Please come see us in a year and disclose

14· · everything and we will, you know, be able to make a

15· · different decision based off of your application

16· · then, okay?· Work with this team.· They will help

17· · you.

18· · · · · · · MR. WILLIAMS:· I'm just going to -- I do

19· · my best.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Look forward to seeing

21· · you.

22· · · · · · · MR. WILLIAMS:· Thank you.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good luck to you, sir.

24· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 49, Ryan Seegmiller.

25· · · · · · · Good morning, sir.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. SEEGMILLER:· Morning.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator Diaz, can

·3· · you tell us why we're here for Mr. Seegmiller?

·4· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· The applicant was

·5· · denied for a misdemeanor possession of drug not for

·6· · interstate commerce conviction out of Las Vegas,

·7· · Nevada in 2011.· The applicant was sentenced to 90

·8· · days in jail.

·9· · · · · · · He also has a 2020 misdemeanor for

10· · possession of a controlled substance and possession

11· · of dangerous weapon.· This arrest was dismissed and

12· · disclosed.

13· · · · · · · He did disclose all arrests, and later

14· · submitted a written letter of appeal.· He was not

15· · made provisional, and is here to appeal today.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, are there any

17· · questions for Mr. Seegmiller?· Hearing there are no

18· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

20· · · · · · · Motion to grant the appeal of Ryan

21· · Seegmiller, and the reason is time and distance.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

23· · Cortez.

24· · · · · · · I'll second the motion.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we
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·1· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·2· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Reason being, to --

·4· · along with the full disclosure -- or sorry, along

·5· · with the time and distance is full disclosure.

·6· · · · · · · So congratulations.· You will receive your

·7· · work card.· The office will contact you with next

·8· · steps.

·9· · · · · · · MR. SEEGMILLER:· Thank you.· Appreciate

10· · your time.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 51,

12· · Henry Quintana.

13· · · · · · · Good morning, sir.

14· · · · · · · MR. QUINTANA:· Morning.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigate Diaz, why

16· · are we here for Mr. Quintana?

17· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· The applicant was

18· · denied for a felony possession of cocaine with

19· · intent to distribute conviction out of Salt Lake

20· · City, Utah in 1992.· The applicant was sentenced to

21· · 27 months in prison.

22· · · · · · · He did disclose the arrest and was aware

23· · he would be denied, and submitted a written letter

24· · of appeal at the time of applying.· He was not made

25· · provisional and is here to appeal today.
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any questions --

·2· · Board, any questions for Mr. Quintana?

·3· · · · · · · Hearing there are no questions, I'll

·4· · entertain a motion.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·6· · Cortez motioning to approve Mr. Quintana's appeal

·7· · based on time and distance and full disclosure.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

·9· · we have a second?

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

12· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

13· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So motion

15· · passes.

16· · · · · · · You will get your guard card -- or your

17· · work card.· The office will contact you with next

18· · steps.

19· · · · · · · MR. QUINTANA:· Perfect, thank you.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.

21· · · · · · · What number were you?

22· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· 73.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We'll go ahead.· Come

24· · on down, you're the next contestant.

25· · · · · · · So this is Agenda Item No. 73, Joshua
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·1· · Smith.· Ms. Cuevas, tell us why we're here for

·2· · Mr. Smith.

·3· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· This is

·4· · Investigator Cuevas for the record.

·5· · · · · · · Mr. Smith was denied for his disclosed

·6· · felony conviction from 2003 out of California for

·7· · possession of stolen property.

·8· · · · · · · He also disclosed misdemeanor convictions,

·9· · including 2019 DUI, a 2016 disobey a court order.

10· · He was not made provisional, disclosed all arrests,

11· · and was aware he would be denied and is here to

12· · appeal.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, any questions

14· · for Mr. Smith?

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· For investigator,

16· · did his fingerprints come in?

17· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· Yes, the

18· · fingerprints have been received and they confirmed

19· · there's nothing new.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Thank you.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

22· · from the Board?

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

24· · Cortez.

25· · · · · · · I do have a question.· Mr. Smith, are
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·1· · you -- what's the status of your probation?

·2· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· I'm not on probation no more.

·3· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· When did you

·4· · terminate?

·5· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· I terminated years -- 2020 --

·6· · for DUI?

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Yes.

·8· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· '22?· '22, I think.· '22, '23.

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· You weren't

10· · sentenced to any time, you just got off on

11· · probation?

12· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· Yes.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

14· · from the Board?· Okay.· Hearing there are no

15· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

17· · · · · · · Make a motion to approve -- no.· To grant

18· · the appeal of Joshua Smith, time and distance.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

20· · motion.· Do we have a second?

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

23· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

24· · · · · · · Opposed?

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I'm not opposed.
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·1· · I'm going to say aye, but I will disclose this was a

·2· · tad too close for time and distance.· You just got

·3· · off probation.· But I am going to agree with the

·4· · motion.

·5· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· Thank you.

·6· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, motion passes and

·8· · your work card will be approved.· The office will

·9· · contact you for next steps, okay?· Thank you.

10· · · · · · · MR. SMITH:· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Now we'll take a brief

12· · recess until 11:30 when everybody else is supposed

13· · to come in.

14· · · · · · · · · · · · (Off record.)

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· It's 11:35.· Want to

16· · make sure everybody's back.· We'll go ahead and get

17· · started.· We might go out a little out of order

18· · here, because we don't have a whole bunch of people

19· · in the audience.

20· · · · · · · If you were not here earlier and you did

21· · not swear in, which I don't think any of you guys

22· · did, if you could please stand and Counsel Harris

23· · will swear you in.

24· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· If you're on the agenda or

25· · plan on testifying, please stand.
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · AUDIENCE MEMBERS,

·2· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

·3· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

·4

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Probably easier just

·6· · for me to ask what agenda item they are.

·7· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· DAG Harris, for the record.

·8· · · · · · · Given that they were given the initial

·9· · start time of 11:30, just to go in order and we'll

10· · just trail.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

12· · · · · · · Up north, do you have any -- anybody up

13· · there?

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· We have no one in

15· · the audience up north.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· All right.· We'll go

17· · ahead and start with Agenda Item No. 40, Aaron

18· · Miller.

19· · · · · · · Mr. Miller, or Ms. Miller, are you in the

20· · audience?

21· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 41, Marshall Brown?

22· · · · · · · MR. BROWN:· Yes, ma'am.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Please come to the

24· · front.

25· · · · · · · Investigator Swarthout, can you tell why
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·1· · we're here for Mr. Brown?

·2· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

·3· · denied for a felony conviction and for failure to

·4· · disclose arrest history.

·5· · · · · · · May 13th, 2012 out of California.· Felony

·6· · conviction for petty theft with prior jail.· Four

·7· · years prison.

·8· · · · · · · April 19th, 2005 out of California.

·9· · Felony, petty theft with prior jail.· Three years

10· · prison.

11· · · · · · · August 15th, 1996 out of California.

12· · Second degree burglary.· Two years, eight months

13· · prison, plus additional five years for parole

14· · violation.

15· · · · · · · March 10, 1989 out of California.

16· · Misdemeanor petty theft.· 15 days jail, 24 months

17· · probation.· Those arrests were disclosed.

18· · · · · · · There is an additional Excel with the rest

19· · of his arrests.· And those other arrests, none of

20· · those other ones were disclosed.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Sounds good,

22· · thank you.

23· · · · · · · Board, any questions for Mr. Brown?

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Board indulgence.

25· · · · · · · No questions.
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Hearing there

·2· · are no questions, I'll entertain a motion.

·3· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

·4· · · · · · · I move we uphold the denial based on the

·5· · fact that Mr. Brown did not disclose many of his

·6· · arrests.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So we have a

·8· · motion.· Do we have a second?

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Second.· Numerous

10· · arrests, nondisclosure.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

12· · have a second.· All in favor, say aye.

13· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, sir, you did

15· · disclose the first part of the arrests, but the

16· · application states that you have to disclose -- you

17· · have to tell us all of them.· And so because you

18· · have a whole second page here that none have been

19· · disclosed, felony nor misdemeanors were disclosed.

20· · · · · · · So rather than go through that whole

21· · history and read it out, I'm sure you're aware of

22· · it.· If you're not, the Board -- the licensing

23· · office can help you with that because we now have

24· · it.

25· · · · · · · But you do have to wait for one year to
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·1· · reapply for a work card, okay?· So, your application

·2· · has been denied.· You will not get your work card.

·3· · You're able to reapply in one year.· Work with them.

·4· · They have all of your information and can help you

·5· · fill out the application, okay?

·6· · · · · · · MR. BROWN:· Do I get to say anything?

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sure.· The decision's

·8· · been made, but --

·9· · · · · · · MR. BROWN:· Okay, thank you.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You're welcome.

11· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 42, Brigitte Bautista.

12· · · · · · · Did I say that right?

13· · · · · · · MS. BAUTISTA:· It's Brigitte.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Brigitte, okay.

15· · · · · · · Investigator Swarthout, why are we here

16· · for Ms. Bautista?

17· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

18· · denied for a felony conviction and conviction of

19· · illegal use or possession of a dangerous weapon and

20· · failure to disclose.

21· · · · · · · August 25th, 2012 out of New York.

22· · Misdemeanor criminal possession, weapon, fourth

23· · degree, intent to use.· One year probation.· That

24· · wasn't disclosed.

25· · · · · · · August 14th, 2007 out of Washington.
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·1· · Felony, robbery, second degree.· Sentenced to nine

·2· · months jail, 12 months community custody.· That one

·3· · was disclosed.

·4· · · · · · · July 2nd, 2022 out of Nevada.· Misdemeanor

·5· · domestic battery.· That charge was dismissed, but it

·6· · wasn't disclosed.

·7· · · · · · · May 8th, 2018 out of Nevada.· Misdemeanor

·8· · battery, that was one dismissed.

·9· · · · · · · July 3rd, 2017 out of Nevada.· Misdemeanor

10· · battery, that one was dismissed.

11· · · · · · · January 24th, 2015 out of Kansas.· Felony,

12· · aggravated assault; felony, criminal damage to

13· · property, misdemeanor.· That one was dismissed.

14· · · · · · · December 29th, 2013 out of Kansas.· Felony

15· · domestic battery.· Sentenced to six months' jail

16· · suspended, 12 months probation.

17· · · · · · · June 16th, 2010, out of Washington.· Gross

18· · misdemeanor, assault, fourth degree.· Sentenced to

19· · 365 days jail suspended, 24 months probation and

20· · $5,000 fine.

21· · · · · · · December 23rd, 2009 out of Washington.

22· · Gross misdemeanor, theft, third degree.· Sentenced

23· · to 365 days jail, 338 days suspended, and a fine of

24· · $50.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.
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·1· · · · · · · Board, any questions for Ms. Bautista?

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·3· · Cortez.· Brigitte, why did you fail to disclose your

·4· · convictions?

·5· · · · · · · MS. BAUTISTA:· I was just in a car

·6· · accident, and that's how I got this scar on my face.

·7· · They said it was going to jog my memory.· So when I

·8· · went in, I tried to write down the most that I could

·9· · remember.

10· · · · · · · I'm rehabilitated now.· I've been doing

11· · what I need to do.· I just want to put my past

12· · behind me.· I don't want that to define me.  I

13· · actually wrote something, but I don't know if I can

14· · read what I wrote.

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I don't -- I have no

16· · further questions.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, any further

18· · questions?

19· · · · · · · Hearing there are no -- sorry.· Typically,

20· · we don't allow folks to read things.· So at this

21· · point we're going to go ahead and not do that.

22· · · · · · · Board, if we have no further questions,

23· · I'll entertain a motion.

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

25· · Cortez.
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·1· · · · · · · I'm going to motion that we uphold the

·2· · denial based on nondisclosure of a number of

·3· · convictions.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

·5· · motion.· Do we have a second?

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

·8· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·9· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, the motion -- you

11· · won't be issued your work card today.· The reason is

12· · the number of interactions that you had with law

13· · enforcement, but also the nondisclosures.

14· · · · · · · So, I know you said you had an accident

15· · and you have an issue with your memory.· You are

16· · able to come back and reapply in one year.· Work

17· · with the office, because now they have your arrest

18· · history and they can help you through that, okay?

19· · So don't be afraid to come and ask them for help,

20· · because they will help support you.· I've been

21· · working with this group a long time.· They are

22· · really good about that.· You can come back in one

23· · year, reapply and, you know, go through this process

24· · again.· And then, you know, the outcome would

25· · probably be different, okay?
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·1· · · · · · · But the most important thing is to make

·2· · sure that you report everything, okay?

·3· · · · · · · MS. BAUTISTA:· Okay.· Thank you.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good luck to you.

·5· · · · · · · MS. BAUTISTA:· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 43,

·7· · John Nelson.

·8· · · · · · · Sir, were you sworn in?

·9· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Yes.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay, thank you.

11· · · · · · · Investigator Swarthout, why are -- can you

12· · tell us why we're here for Mr. Nelson?

13· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

14· · denied for a felony conviction.

15· · · · · · · May 9th, 2010 out of Nevada.· Felony,

16· · battery with substantial bodily harm.· Sentenced to

17· · 12 to 36 months NDOC, probation for three years.

18· · · · · · · The applicant disclosed this.· The

19· · applicant was dishonorably discharged from probation

20· · on 11-16-2012.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, if I can ask,

22· · because I know you guys have more experience than I

23· · do, what does dishonorably discharged mean from

24· · probation?

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Didn't follow the
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·1· · rules.· Pretty much it.

·2· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· I didn't pay -- oh, sorry.  I

·3· · can say?

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I was going to say,

·5· · we might -- probably going to get more information

·6· · out of you.· So you were given -- this is Board

·7· · Member Cortez.

·8· · · · · · · You were given a number of court orders.

·9· · What did you not fulfill?

10· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Basically, I didn't -- I

11· · didn't pay the restitution.

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· How much was the

13· · restitution?

14· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Four grand, I believe.· No,

15· · 12 grand.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Did you complete

17· · your community service hours.

18· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Yes.

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Did you go to any

20· · classes?

21· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Yes -- I didn't think I had

22· · to do no classes.· I just had community service.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Have you had any

24· · kind of -- this is battery with substantial bodily

25· · harm, not domestic.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· This is just substantial

·2· · bodily harm.

·3· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· So it's not

·4· · domestic --

·5· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· No, ma'am --

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· It was just

·7· · another --

·8· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Excuse me.· Really fast.

·9· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Sorry.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· So, it was the

11· · restitution.· And you said it was 1,000.

12· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· It was 12 grand.

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Oh, 12,000.

14· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· I think I only got, like, a

15· · grand.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· You said you've only

17· · paid 1,000 of it?

18· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· I think it was.· Something

19· · like that.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Are you aware if you

21· · have any civil liens on you?

22· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· No, ma'am.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Investigator

24· · Swarthout, do we have any kind of knowledge of any

25· · kind of liens based off --
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·1· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· When I searched

·2· · the case, it was only the case that showed up.· It

·3· · didn't show any liens out of the Eighth Judicial.

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Basically, because he

·6· · couldn't afford it they discharged you.

·7· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Yes.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· So, in the adult

·9· · system, and I'm not sure how it works as far as

10· · restitution, usually the case stays open until that

11· · restitution is paid in full.· Especially if this is,

12· · like, a substantial bodily harm.

13· · · · · · · But, in that case, I would imagine the

14· · victim has recourse to file a -- I would imagine a

15· · civil lawsuit pending if there were any kind of

16· · medical damages or not.· So I'm not sure how it

17· · worked out with the adult system.· But I know if

18· · there is outstanding restitution, that case is not

19· · going to close until that restitution is paid in

20· · full.· But I --

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· It does show on the

22· · paperwork it was discharged.

23· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Yes.· It does

24· · show that the case was closed.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, any further
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·1· · questions for Mr. Nelson?

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

·3· · · · · · · Mr. Nelson, what -- if you get a card,

·4· · what do you plan on doing with it?

·5· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· I was just trying to work.

·6· · Just basically.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Do you have any

·8· · prospects at this time?

·9· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Couple of them, security

10· · jobs.· Other than that, I'm just working right now.

11· · Security, I work Salvation Army right here.· So I

12· · just want to work, that's all.· And if it betters my

13· · opportunity, that's really what I went for, to ask.

14· · And I haven't been in trouble in a long time.· Check

15· · my record.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· What have you been

17· · doing recently?

18· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Just working, taking care of

19· · my children.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· What kind of work?

21· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Security at the Salvation

22· · Army.· Cook at the KFC.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

24· · from the Board?

25· · · · · · · Has he disclosed -- you did disclose,
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·1· · okay.

·2· · · · · · · If there's no further questions, I'll

·3· · entertain a motion.

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·5· · Cortez.· I'm going to motion that we approve

·6· · Mr. Nelson's appeal and grant him his work card.

·7· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Thank you, so much.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We're almost done.

·9· · · · · · · So, we have a motion.· Do we have a

10· · second?

11· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So we have a motion,

13· · we have a second.· All in favor say aye.

14· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, the motion passes.

16· · You will get your work card.· The office will work

17· · with you and call you in a couple days and help you

18· · get through that, okay?

19· · · · · · · MR. NELSON:· Thank you, so much, guys.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Stay out of

21· · trouble.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Good luck to you.

23· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 44 Benjamin Hall.· Trail.

24· · Agenda Item No. 45, Guillermo Martinez.

25· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· Here.
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Yes.· Good afternoon.

·2· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· Good afternoon, guys.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator

·4· · Swarthout, tell us why we're here for Mr. Martinez.

·5· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

·6· · denied for a felony conviction and failure to

·7· · disclose arrest history.

·8· · · · · · · August 15, 2006 out of California.· Felony

·9· · for transporting illegal aliens and aiding and

10· · abetting.· 24 months BOP.· Granted time served.· Two

11· · years supervised release to include four months of

12· · home detention.

13· · · · · · · September 14th, 2023 out of California.

14· · Robbery.· He was arrested on a fugitive warrant out

15· · here for that case.

16· · · · · · · December 10th, 2007 out of Nevada.· It's

17· · drugs.· 30 hours community service.

18· · · · · · · The applicant was not made provisional

19· · because at the time he submitted his application,

20· · the other investigator had asked for court documents

21· · dealing with that warrant arrest.· And we had not

22· · received them, to my knowledge.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· And the warrant arrest

24· · is for 2023?

25· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· Yes, that's
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·1· · September 14th.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, any questions

·3· · for Mr. Martinez?

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·5· · Cortez.

·6· · · · · · · Mr. Martinez, why did you fail to disclose

·7· · your convictions?

·8· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· The first one is 2006.  I

·9· · forgot about that one.· But the one in 2023, I was

10· · going through the case.· I have proof it was

11· · dismissed.· I was wrongfully arrested for it.

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay, hang on.· Why

13· · did you fail to disclose it?· I'm not asking about

14· · the disposition.

15· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· I did put it -- this one.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· On here, on your

17· · application?

18· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· Oh, this one?· I didn't put

19· · it because my attorney had told me that I was going

20· · to get dismissed and it wasn't going to be in my

21· · record.· So --

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This was an attorney

23· · in California?

24· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· Correct.· I was --

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Did your attorney
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·1· · help you fill out the application?

·2· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· No, he didn't.

·3· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· And the reason why

·4· · I'm asking you that is because the attorney would

·5· · have seen a nice big red stop sign.· You need to

·6· · list all of your convictions, despite the

·7· · disposition, despite what city, what state, and if

·8· · it was dismissed.· So I'm -- it's sad to hear that

·9· · your attorney counseled you incorrectly.

10· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· Correct, correct.

11· · · · · · · And I have proof that it was dismissed,

12· · and --

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I understand that,

14· · thank you.· No further questions.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Any further

16· · questions from the Board?

17· · · · · · · If we have no further questions, I'll

18· · entertain a motion.

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.  I

20· · move we uphold the denial for Mr. Martinez based on

21· · the fact that he failed to disclose his criminal

22· · history.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

24· · we have a second?

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member
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·1· · Cortez.· I am going to second that motion based on

·2· · no disclosure.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

·4· · motion, we have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·5· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So, you know,

·7· · again, as she stated, it's on the application.· You

·8· · have to put in all of the information.· Because of

·9· · that, you're not going to be granted your work card

10· · today.· You are able to come back in one year,

11· · reapply, and make sure that you list all of your --

12· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· Previous past history.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Yeah.· And if they ask

14· · you for any paperwork, make sure you turn it in.

15· · Don't bring it here to turn it in to us, you need to

16· · turn it in to them before the meeting.

17· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· Thank you.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Yeah.· Good luck to

19· · you, sir.

20· · · · · · · Okay.· We already did Agenda Item No. 46.

21· · · · · · · So, Agenda Item No. 47, Collins has been

22· · postponed.

23· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 48, Willingham has been

24· · postponed.

25· · · · · · · We've done Agenda Item No. 49.
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·1· · · · · · · We're now on Agenda Item 50, Tavita Tuaau.

·2· · · · · · · Seeing they're not here, we'll trail that.

·3· · · · · · · We already done Agenda Item No. 51.

·4· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 52 has been postponed.

·5· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 53, Chantia Reynolds.

·6· · Thank you.· So 52 is at 12:30?

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Postponed, right?

·8· · 52?

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So the rest of the

10· · folks were told to come in at 12:30.

11· · · · · · · What we'll do now is go around the room.

12· · · · · · · Sir, you've been here the longest, I

13· · think.· What's your agenda item number?

14· · · · · · · MR. JOHNSON:· 59.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· 59.

16· · · · · · · Sir, what's your Agenda Item?

17· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· I'm just here for an

18· · appeal.

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· What's your name,

20· · sir?

21· · · · · · · MR. AKINS:· Debonair Akins.

22· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· 57.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· What's your

24· · name, sir?

25· · · · · · · MR. MARTINEZ:· Andre, 61.
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· 61, okay.

·2· · · · · · · If you have -- if you weren't here earlier

·3· · to be sworn in, could you please stand up and raise

·4· · your right hand and Counsel Harris will swear you

·5· · in.

·6

·7· · · · · · · · · · · AUDIENCE MEMBERS,

·8· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

·9· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

10

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, we'll go ahead and

12· · start at the beginning, Agenda Item No. 57, Debonair

13· · Akins.· Are you here?

14· · · · · · · MR. AKINS:· Yes.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Please come up to the

16· · podium.

17· · · · · · · Investigator Blackmore, hi.

18· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE:· Hi.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Can you tell us why

20· · we're here for Mr. Akins?

21· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE:· Yes.

22· · · · · · · So, the applicant was denied for a weapons

23· · conviction and failure to disclose.

24· · · · · · · He does have a 2023, January 30th,

25· · carrying concealed weapon.· 180 days suspended
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·1· · sentence, 48 hours of community service, and to

·2· · complete firearms safety course.· He did not

·3· · disclose his arrest.

·4· · · · · · · And then he also has a January 30th as

·5· · well, 2023.· This was actually denied, disregard for

·6· · safety of person or property.· Applicant did not

·7· · disclose this arrest.

·8· · · · · · · As well as -- top of that, same date,

·9· · there was a use, possession of drug paraphernalia.

10· · Notice possession was listed and applicant did not

11· · disclose arrest.

12· · · · · · · He was not made provisional and that

13· · wishes to appeal.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, any questions

15· · for Mr. Akins?

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

17· · Cortez.

18· · · · · · · Mr. Akins, a couple questions, but No. 1,

19· · why did you fail to disclose any of your

20· · convictions?

21· · · · · · · MR. AKINS:· Well, I just kind of signed up

22· · for the job, so I thought that the background report

23· · would be enough to state for itself.

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Did you go slow

25· · filling out that application?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. AKINS:· I filled it out.· I mean,

·2· · yeah, I was there for, like, an hour for sure, just

·3· · doing paperwork.

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay.· The reason

·5· · why I'm asking is because you might have missed that

·6· · nice big red stop sign where it asks you to list all

·7· · of your criminal convictions.· There's one page in

·8· · there that literally has a big red stop sign.

·9· · · · · · · The following page is when you're supposed

10· · to list all of that.· So that's why I was asking you

11· · if you went nice and slow on it, because you failed

12· · to list all of it.

13· · · · · · · Second question is, what are you doing

14· · running around with a concealed weapon?

15· · · · · · · MR. AKINS:· Well, I have a CCW.· And the

16· · concealed weapon that I had -- the concealed weapon

17· · that I had was a nine millimeter P80 pistol.· So I

18· · built that from scratch.· The Nevada law states that

19· · you can build your own firearm.· And it be fine

20· · without the CCW.· But I went to go take the CCW

21· · anyways.· And I also bought a shotgun, which is

22· · where the situation came in.· I had a safety

23· · failure.· So we exchanged words with the court, got

24· · that handled.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Understood.· Okay.
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·1· · Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

·3· · from the Board?· Hearing there are no further

·4· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·6· · Cortez.· I am going to motion to uphold the denial

·7· · based on the nondisclosure and time and distance.

·8· · We've got charges of last year.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So we have a motion.

10· · Do we have a second?

11· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

13· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

14· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.· You

16· · will not get your work card at this time.· You do

17· · have the information, and you're able to apply in

18· · one year.· The office will help you if you can't

19· · remember or if you just don't have all of the

20· · information that you need.· So definitely want the

21· · office to help you with that.

22· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Can I interrupt?· They're

23· · really loud next door.

24· · · · · · · · · · · · (Off record.)

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, we're on Agenda
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·1· · Item No. 58, Oscar Huerta.

·2· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· We're going out of order

·3· · since the next one comes at 12:30.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Donald Johnson.

·5· · Agenda Item No. 59, Donald Johnson.

·6· · · · · · · Have you been sworn in, sir?

·7· · · · · · · MR. JOHNSON:· Yes, ma'am.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator Cuevas,

·9· · why are we here for Mr. Johnson?

10· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· So,

11· · Mr. Johnson is returning at the Board's request from

12· · the December Board meeting.

13· · · · · · · When he was seen, he had a 1998 felony

14· · conviction that showed on the results as a lifetime

15· · probation.· He was asked to provide court documents

16· · that he is no longer on paper and it was completed.

17· · He has done so, provided from the State of Michigan,

18· · court documents to show that he actually was only

19· · required to complete one year of probation and has

20· · been discharged.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Awesome.

22· · · · · · · Board, any questions for Mr. Johnson?

23· · Hearing there are no questions, I'll entertain a

24· · motion.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Board Member Cortez
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·1· · motioning to approve the appeal for Mr. Johnson.

·2· · · · · · · Thank you for doing exactly what you were

·3· · asked to do.

·4· · · · · · · MR. JOHNSON:· Yes, ma'am.· Thank you.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

·6· · we have a second?

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick, seconds.

·8· · · · · · · THE COURT:· We have a motion, we have a

·9· · second.· All in favor say aye.

10· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.· The

12· · office will contact you with next steps, okay?

13· · · · · · · MR. JOHNSON:· Yes, ma'am.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you, very much.

15· · · · · · · MR. JOHNSON:· Have a good day.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You, too.

17· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 61, Andre Hicks.

18· · · · · · · MR. HICKS:· Hello.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Hello.

20· · · · · · · Investigator Cuevas, why are we here for

21· · Mr. Hicks?

22· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· Mr. Hicks was

23· · denied for his listed felony conviction from 2011

24· · out of California for sale of controlled substance

25· · where he was sentenced to 180 days jail and three
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·1· · years' probation.

·2· · · · · · · He also has a 2022 misdemeanor in

·3· · California for grand theft.· Looks like he was also

·4· · sentenced to three days jail.

·5· · · · · · · A 2016 felony from Nevada which was

·6· · dismissed.· It was an arrest warrant for another

·7· · state for the -- for California.

·8· · · · · · · 2004 misdemeanor from California for

·9· · public nuisance.

10· · · · · · · 2003 arrest from California for possess

11· · counterfeit item.· He did list all arrests and was

12· · not put on provisional and wishes to appeal.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, are

14· · there any questions for Mr. Hicks?

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

16· · · · · · · Good afternoon, Mr. Hicks.

17· · · · · · · MR. HICKS:· Hello.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Can you explain

19· · the grand theft in July of 2022?

20· · · · · · · MR. HICKS:· That actually was nine, ten

21· · years ago, that I actually had that case.

22· · · · · · · But when I went to San Diego to go see my

23· · kids, the kids in San Diego, I got pulled over

24· · crossing the border because I went to Tijuana.· And

25· · that's when I had the warrant.· So that's why it
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·1· · says 2022.· And I had to do the three days, they

·2· · dropped the case or whatever.· But since I live here

·3· · now, here since 2015.

·4· · · · · · · So it was, like, 2014 or 2013 I stole from

·5· · my job to -- I was going through -- me and my family

·6· · was homeless or whatever and we were sleeping on the

·7· · streets, parks.· I had my daughter's three kids at

·8· · that time.

·9· · · · · · · And I was just really depressed and I

10· · ended up stealing from the job.· To move here to try

11· · to, you know, do better.· Been here nine years now.

12· · Had two more kids now.

13· · · · · · · So, the reason it says 2022 is because the

14· · warrant was from 2013 or something like that.· So

15· · when they arrested me, I told them I had been

16· · negative for nine years now and dropped the case.

17· · And I was able to get out in three days.· I haven't

18· · done nothing since I've been here.

19· · · · · · · Those crimes, of course, when I was in my

20· · 20s.· I just turned 40, so trying to change my life.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· What do you do now?

22· · · · · · · MR. HICKS:· I was working at Jay's Market

23· · and Door Dash.· But the job, security.· My cousin,

24· · he does security, and his checks be a lot better

25· · than mine.· So I was, like, I've done security
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·1· · before in San Diego.· So that's it.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Any further

·3· · questions from the Board?

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Investigator

·5· · Cuevas, is there a -- any kind of paperwork to back

·6· · up what he's saying.

·7· · · · · · · MR. HICKS:· Yeah, so --

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· No, this is for

·9· · the investigator.

10· · · · · · · MR. HICKS:· I was thought you was asking

11· · me.

12· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· So, yes.· The

13· · original looks like it was 2011.· And then it does

14· · show in 2022.· He did provide me court documents

15· · from California, San Diego.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

17· · Cortez.

18· · · · · · · Just to clarify, so the original charges

19· · were back in 20- -- what year?

20· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· 2011.

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Got it, thank you.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

23· · for the Board?· Hearing there are no further

24· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member
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·1· · Cortez motioning to approve Mr. Hick's appeal for

·2· · the guard card based on full disclosure, time and

·3· · distance.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So we have a motion.

·5· · Do we have a second?

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

·8· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·9· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

10· · · · · · · MR. HICKS:· Thank you, guys.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You're welcome.· So it

12· · will be granted.· The office will contact you for

13· · next steps, okay?

14· · · · · · · MR. HICKS:· Thank you, guys, so much.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Yeah, you're welcome.

16· · · · · · · So when was the next group told to come

17· · in?

18· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· 12:30.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We'll go back and go

20· · through our trailed items before we move on to the

21· · next section.

22· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 40, Aaron Miller.· Is

23· · there an Aaron Miller?

24· · · · · · · And then Agenda Item No. 44, Benjamin

25· · Hall?
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·1· · · · · · · So, seeing that they were told to come in

·2· · at what time, 11:30?· Do we want to wait until the

·3· · end of the session?

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Until 12:30.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So we have one other

·6· · Agenda Item, No. 50, Tavita Tuaau?· No?· So we have

·7· · those three agenda items.· They were told to come in

·8· · at 11:30.· We'll wait until 12:30 and then make a

·9· · motion after that.

10· · · · · · · Does anybody need a quick break or good to

11· · keep going?

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Good to go.· Just

13· · two.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, you came in

15· · first.· What agenda item are you?

16· · · · · · · MR. LUONG:· 55.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· 55.· Okay.

18· · · · · · · And, sir, what agenda item were you?· Or

19· · ma'am.· What's your name?

20· · · · · · · MR. ISON:· Ison, Michael.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· 62.

22· · · · · · · Gentlemen, you need to stand up so you can

23· · be sworn in by Counsel Harris and we'll go ahead and

24· · take you guys.

25· · ...
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·1· · · · · · · · · · · AUDIENCE MEMBERS,

·2· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

·3· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

·4

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Mr. Luong, if you

·6· · would come up.

·7· · · · · · · Investigator Diaz, Agenda Item No. 55.

·8· · Investigator Diaz, could you tell us why we're here

·9· · for Mr. Luong?

10· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· The applicant was

11· · denied for a felony burglary conviction out of

12· · Rancho Cucamonga, California in 2000.· The applicant

13· · was sentenced to 36 months probation and did receive

14· · a California PC 1203.4 dismissal.· He did disclose

15· · the arrest and was aware he would be denied and

16· · later submitted a written letter of appeal.· He was

17· · not made provisional and is here to appeal today.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · Board, any questions for -- am I

20· · pronouncing your name right, Luong?

21· · · · · · · MR. LUONG:· Yes.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Any questions

23· · for Mr. Luong?· Hearing there are no questions, I'll

24· · entertain a motion.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member
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·1· · Cortez motioning to approve Mr. Luong's appeal for

·2· · the work card based on full disclosure, time and

·3· · distance.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

·5· · we have a second?

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

·8· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·9· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So the motion

11· · passes.· You will get your work card.· The office

12· · will contact you for next steps, okay?

13· · · · · · · MR. LUONG:· Thank you, ma'am.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.· Good luck

15· · to you.

16· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 62, Michael Ison.

17· · · · · · · Investigator Cuevas, could you tell us why

18· · we're here for Mr. Ison?

19· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· Mr. Ison was

20· · denied for his disclosed 2008 felony from California

21· · for burglary, first degree; use of firearm during

22· · commission of felony.· He was sentenced to eight

23· · years prison.

24· · · · · · · He also has a 2004 felony conviction from

25· · California for transport controlled substance.
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·1· · · · · · · A 1996 felony conviction from California

·2· · for transport controlled substance again.

·3· · · · · · · He does have another felony from 2007 out

·4· · of California, but that was dismissed and denied,

·5· · and that was for the manufacturer, possession of

·6· · dangerous weapon and possession of controlled

·7· · substance.

·8· · · · · · · He did disclose all arrests and was not

·9· · made provisional and is here to appeal.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, any

11· · questions for Mr. Ison?· Hearing there's no

12· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.  I

14· · move to grant the work card for Mr. Ison based on

15· · full disclosure of criminal history and time and

16· · distance.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

18· · motion.· Do we have a second?

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

20· · Cortez.· I'll second.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

22· · motion, we have a second.· All in favor say aye.

23· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.· Good

25· · luck to you.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. LUONG:· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, we have no one in

·3· · the audience, and the next group is supposed to come

·4· · in at 12:30.· So we'll be on recess until 12:30.

·5· · · · · · · · · · · · (Off record.)

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· It's 12:30.· We'll go

·7· · ahead and start working on the next session.

·8· · · · · · · Please, if you weren't here earlier, and I

·9· · don't think any of you guys have been, please stand

10· · up and Counsel Harris will swear you in.

11

12· · · · · · · · · · · AUDIENCE MEMBERS,

13· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

14· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

15

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You guys can have a

17· · seat.

18· · · · · · · Mr. Bezick, is there anybody up north?

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· We have nobody in

20· · the north.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So we'll start

22· · with the trailed items.· I think is it -- start with

23· · 44?

24· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· There's 40, 44, and 50.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So Aaron Miller.· Is
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·1· · there an Aaron Miller?· Okay.· No Aaron Miller.

·2· · · · · · · Then we have 44, Benjamin Hall?· Okay.

·3· · · · · · · And then the last one from the last

·4· · session is Agenda Item No. 50, Tavita Tuaau.

·5· · · · · · · Board, since they did not make the last

·6· · session, they were required to be here by 11:30,

·7· · it's now 12:30, I will entertain a motion for those

·8· · three items.

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Board Member Cortez

10· · motioning to uphold the denial for items No. 40, 44,

11· · and 50 for no call, no show.· They were -- as

12· · stated, they were told to be here at 11:30.· It is

13· · now 12:32.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

15· · motion.· Do we have a second?

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

18· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

19· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay, motion passes.

21· · · · · · · We're now into Agenda Item No. 52, Tamara

22· · Johnson.· That one was postponed.

23· · · · · · · So Agenda Item No. 53, Chantia Reynolds.

24· · Trail that for now.

25· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 54, Devan Cooper-Walker.
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·1· · · · · · · Good afternoon.

·2· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· How are you doing?

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good.· How are you.

·4· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· I can't complain.

·5· · It's Wednesday.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good.

·7· · · · · · · Investigator Diaz, could you tell us why

·8· · we're here for Mr. Cooper-Walker?

·9· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· The applicant was

10· · denied for a misdemeanor possess, slash, use

11· · dangerous weapon conviction out of Las Vegas, Nevada

12· · in 2022.· The applicant was sentenced to a suspended

13· · 60 days in jail.· He did disclose the arrest and

14· · later submitted a written letter of appeal.· He was

15· · not made provisional, and is here to appeal today.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, any

17· · questions for Mr. Walker?

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

19· · Cortez.

20· · · · · · · Mr. Cooper-Walker, talk to me about the

21· · charge, possession of use of dangerous weapon.· What

22· · happened?

23· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· That was an incident

24· · back in July of 2022, like they said, at work, at a

25· · grill house in North Las Vegas.· Where I shot a



Page 146
·1· · firearm in the air.· Later on that day -- because I

·2· · worked that night, got off that morning.· So later

·3· · on that day, maybe roughly maybe 1:30, 2:00 in the

·4· · afternoon, that's when the cops came to the house,

·5· · revealed to me that they had footage of it.· And I

·6· · complied with them, let them know, yeah, it was me

·7· · on the footage.· It was me.· This and that.· And

·8· · went to jail for, I think, like, 18 hours.· Like, a

·9· · long 18 hours.· And then bailed out and did the

10· · community service, did everything instructed.

11· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· You said you fired a

12· · shot in the air?

13· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Yes.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· For what?

15· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Because -- like, that

16· · sounds really bad, but all I can do is be direct.

17· · Like, it was 4th of July night, I was upset I had to

18· · work, and things got the best, emotions got high,

19· · and that's what happened that night.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Have you taken a

21· · firearm training course?

22· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Since then, yes.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· No.· Prior to, since

24· · then?

25· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Prior to and since
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·1· · then, yes.· Absolutely.

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· And during that

·3· · course, did, at any point, an instructor tell you

·4· · that firing a shot in the air was reasonable or

·5· · allowed?

·6· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Negative.· No to be

·7· · direct.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, you were at work

·9· · and you were upset.· Were you working with other

10· · people?

11· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Oh, yeah, I wasn't the

12· · only one at work that night, yeah.· It was me and

13· · others, yes.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So you just went out

15· · into the parking lot and shot a shot in the air?

16· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Yeah.· It was just one

17· · of those random moments, 4th of July night, working

18· · outside of a grillhouse with a bunch of people.· And

19· · that was that.· I was held accountable for what I

20· · did.· And made no mentions of anything else.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Did you get fired?

22· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Saying -- what?

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Did you get fired from

24· · the --

25· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Oh, absolutely.
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

·2· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Yeah.· That was a

·3· · given.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Did you have a CCW?

·5· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· At the time, yes.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You did.

·7· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· I currently have one

·8· · now, yes.· The CCW was given back, that PILB ended

·9· · up giving my guard card back later on once -- down

10· · the road after the case closed.· Like, October --

11· · September, October, November.· Later on that year.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So --

13· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· That's why -- go

14· · ahead, I'm sorry.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So you were a security

16· · officer at the grillhouse?

17· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Yes.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· With -- armed security

19· · officer?

20· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Yes.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Got it.· Okay,

22· · different.· Okay.

23· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· My bad if there was

24· · any confusion.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· No, I think that
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·1· · probably -- so, just to be clear, you're an armed

·2· · security officer out on site, upset that you were

·3· · working, and you fired your firearm.· Okay.

·4· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Yes.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, any

·6· · other questions?· Hearing there are no further

·7· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.  I

·9· · move we grant the work card for Mr. Cooper-Walker

10· · based on full disclosure of criminal history.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

12· · we have a second?

13· · · · · · · If there's no second what do we do?

14· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· Then the motion fails.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· The motion fails.

16· · · · · · · So with that motion failing, I'll

17· · entertain another motion.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

19· · · · · · · Make a motion to deny Devan Cooper-Walker

20· · his work card.· Weapons charge only seven months

21· · ago.· That's my reason.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So time and

23· · distance.

24· · · · · · · Okay.· We have a motion.· Do we have a

25· · second?



Page 150
·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·2· · Cortez.· I'm also going to second that motion based

·3· · on time and distance.· We have a weapons charge that

·4· · occurred in 2022.· And I did not hear enough of a

·5· · justification or reasoning as to why a 30-some year

·6· · old with experience of a firearm, thinking it's a

·7· · good idea to fire a weapon -- or fire a bullet in

·8· · the air because it's 4th of July.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

10· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

11· · · · · · · Aye.

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Aye.

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Aye.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Nay.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sorry.· Opposed?

16· · Okay.

17· · · · · · · So the motion -- the second motion passes

18· · to uphold the denial.

19· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Understood.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You know, you're more

21· · than welcome to come and apply in a year.· But,

22· · yeah, they're pretty serious charges for --

23· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· If I may ask a

24· · question.· I don't mean to interrupt you by any

25· · stretch of the imagination.· If my guard card and
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·1· · CCW were given back to me later on that year, which

·2· · is the year 2022 and here we are in 2024, does that

·3· · weigh any option to the reason of this denial?

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· No.

·5· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Okay, absolutely.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · · MR. COOPER-WALKER:· Got you.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Agenda Item No.

·9· · 56, Maurice Harris.

10· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· Yes.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good afternoon, sir.

12· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· Hello, everyone.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Hello.

14· · · · · · · Investigator Diaz, could you please tell

15· · us why we're here for Mr. Harris?

16· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· The applicant was

17· · denied for a felony robbery conviction out of

18· · Chicago, Illinois in 2002.· The applicant was

19· · sentenced to 18 months probation.

20· · · · · · · The applicant also has a driving under the

21· · influence misdemeanor conviction in 2007.· He was

22· · sentenced to one year probation.· This arrest was

23· · disclosed.

24· · · · · · · There was also a domestic battery

25· · misdemeanor conviction in 2012.· Sentenced to one
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·1· · year probation.· This arrest was not disclosed.

·2· · · · · · · He did not disclose all arrests and was

·3· · aware he would be denied and submitted a written

·4· · letter of appeal.· The applicant was not made

·5· · provisional, and is here to appeal.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, on the criminal

·7· · history, the last one wasn't put on there.· Was that

·8· · one found from the fingerprints; is that...

·9· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· That is correct.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, any

11· · questions for Mr. Harris?

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

13· · Cortez.

14· · · · · · · Mr. Harris, could you tell us why you

15· · failed to disclose the last arrest that was found in

16· · the fingerprints?

17· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· In 2012?

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Investigate Diaz, is

19· · that the year, 2012?

20· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· Yes, it is a 2012

21· · conviction.

22· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· Okay.· So what happened with

23· · that -- okay.· It's -- it might sound crazy.

24· · Honestly, I was going to come home from work.· And

25· · then the following day I had court for child support
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·1· · from my daughter.· And my youngest son mother just

·2· · basically sent me to jail for domestic, just so my

·3· · daughter mother can make a case for my daughter

·4· · because she thought she should be home with her at

·5· · the age of 11 because she was going to start her

·6· · period.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Hang on, Mr. Harris.

·8· · I believe Investigator Diaz was trying to say

·9· · something?

10· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· No, ma'am.  I

11· · apologize.

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay.

13· · · · · · · Mr. Harris, let me get back to my

14· · question, because you're telling me what occurred.

15· · But my question is, why did you fail to disclose

16· · that conviction?· You told us about the other two,

17· · but you didn't tell us about this one.

18· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· Honestly, I honestly forgot

19· · about it.· It was some crazy.· And she came and got

20· · me right out.· She came and bonded me out.· Came and

21· · visit me the next day and everything.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Investigate Diaz,

23· · could you tell me one more time, my apologies, what

24· · were the charges and disposition?

25· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· Yes, ma'am.· For 2012
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·1· · or for all of them?

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· The 2012.

·3· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· The fingerprint report

·4· · reads a domestic battery, misdemeanor conviction,

·5· · class A, guilty, probation of one year.· And that is

·6· · dated January 12, 2012.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Mr. Harris, have you

·8· · had any law enforcement contact since?

·9· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· No, I don't -- haven't been

10· · in any trouble or anything.

11· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· What do you plan to

12· · do with a guard card if granted one?

13· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· Honestly, I'm married with

14· · five kids and a five-year old grandson.· And I just

15· · want a second job so I can support them better.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Do you have a

17· · company or agency that's willing to give you one, or

18· · is there one on standby?· Have you --

19· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· Yes.· The Walmart security.

20· · I believe the lady's name is Deja.· She came to me

21· · and asked me would I like to work for her.· She saw

22· · me working at another job doing security.· So I said

23· · yes, and I went along through it.

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Understood, thank

25· · you.
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·1· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· And, like, I was young, when

·2· · that happened, you know?· Just -- I'm older now,

·3· · wiser.· I just want to support my family.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any other questions

·5· · from the Board?· Hearing there are no further

·6· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

·7· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· May I say anything?

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·9· · Cortez.· Under normal circumstances, because you

10· · have failed to disclose, I would normally deny or

11· · recommend the uphold -- upheld the denial.· However,

12· · because there was time and distance, talking over

13· · ten years ago, you failed to disclose one of -- out

14· · of the three.· I am going to motion to overturn the

15· · denial and grant you the work card.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

17· · we have a second?

18· · · · · · · No second, the motion fails.· So we'll

19· · entertain another motion.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.  I

21· · make a motion to uphold the denial based on

22· · nondisclosure of criminal history.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

24· · we have a second?· All in favor -- we have a motion.

25· · Do we have a second?· Sorry.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

·3· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·4· · · · · · · Aye.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Aye.

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Aye.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Opposed?

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Nay.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, unfortunately,

10· · because you didn't disclose that one we're going to

11· · have to remain consistent and say that we can't move

12· · forward and grant you a work card.

13· · · · · · · You are able to come back in one year and

14· · reapply.· And these folks will help you.· They have

15· · all of your history, and so as long as you don't get

16· · in any trouble between now and then, you will be

17· · able to use the same paperwork to help you fill this

18· · out, okay?· We hope to see you in another year,

19· · okay?

20· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· How do I get it disclosed?

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So --

22· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· I knew that I would have done

23· · it back then.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, disclosing is just

25· · telling us that it happened, right?· So you told us
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·1· · about two of the items.· You didn't tell us about

·2· · the third item.

·3· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· I forgot about that,

·4· · honestly.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I understood.

·6· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· And they told me about it --

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· When they ran your

·8· · fingerprints.

·9· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· I honestly forgot about that.

10· · But they told me to make sure I tell you guys.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We understand that.

12· · But unfortunately, we have many people come in front

13· · of us that choose not to tell us or they forget

14· · because it's been so long ago.· And we have to

15· · remain consistent, because we deny them as well.

16· · You have an opportunity to come back and see us in

17· · one year, and then you have all this paperwork to go

18· · by to do it again, okay?

19· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· So in a year I just file

20· · another motion?

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You go see the office

22· · and fill out another application and then you'll

23· · have all -- they'll have that information to help

24· · you fill out your application.

25· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· All right.· Thank you.
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good luck to you.

·2· · Thank you.

·3· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 58, Oscar Huerta.

·4· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR DIAZ:· He's in Carson City.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Oh, he is.· Okay.

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· And he needs to be

·7· · sworn in.

·8· · · · · · · · · · · AUDIENCE MEMBER,

·9· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

10· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

11

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Could you tell us --

13· · investigator Blackmore, could you tell us why we're

14· · here?

15· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE:· Investigator

16· · Blackmore, for the record.

17· · · · · · · Applicant was denied due to failure to

18· · disclose and illegal use or possession of a

19· · dangerous weapon.· In 2011 -- sorry, the reason for

20· · denial is in 2016, assault with a deadly weapon.· He

21· · did five years' probation, 364 days in jail.

22· · Applicant did not disclose arrest.

23· · · · · · · Concurrent with that arrest, there was

24· · also an assault with intent to rape.· That was later

25· · dismissed.
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·1· · · · · · · And then he was -- another 2016 incident

·2· · in November, assault with a deadly weapon.· There's

·3· · no disposition listed on the fingerprints.

·4· · Applicant did not disclose.

·5· · · · · · · And then he has a 2011 contempt of court

·6· · that was later dismissed.· Applicant did not

·7· · disclose.

·8· · · · · · · He was made provisional, but he was not

·9· · added on to any company roster and he wishes to

10· · appeal.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

12· · · · · · · Sir, can I ask now, do you have a weapon?

13· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· No.· I do not.· 2016 it

14· · was --

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· No, sir, I'm asking,

16· · do you have a weapon right now?

17· · · · · · · MR. HARRIS:· Oh, no.· I do not.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

19· · · · · · · Board, are there any questions for

20· · Mr. Huerta?

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

22· · · · · · · Mr. Huerta, why did you not disclose your

23· · criminal history?

24· · · · · · · MR. HUERTA:· I wasn't aware that for

25· · Nevada we were supposed to do from the May '18 and



Page 160
·1· · above.· I was -- California, where it's ten years

·2· · within the 10-year period.

·3· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· It clearly states on

·4· · the Nevada application that you have to disclose all

·5· · criminal history.

·6· · · · · · · MR. HUERTA:· I apologize.· I did not see

·7· · that.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Any further

·9· · questions for Mr. Huerta?

10· · · · · · · Sir, can I ask, you're in a uniform now.

11· · Are you working for a security company?

12· · · · · · · MR. HUERTA:· Correct.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You're working for a

14· · security company in Nevada?

15· · · · · · · MR. HUERTA:· In California.· In

16· · California.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· In California.

18· · And you just came over today for your appointment?

19· · · · · · · MR. HUERTA:· Yes.· I just got off work.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Got you.

21· · · · · · · Any further questions?· Hearing there are

22· · no further questions, I'll entertain a motion.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

24· · · · · · · I move we uphold the denial based on

25· · nondisclosure of criminal history.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·2· · Cortez.· I'll second that motion.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

·4· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·5· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, like you heard me

·7· · explain before to the other gentlemen, if you would

·8· · like to apply in a year they do have your criminal

·9· · history.· The office will help you fill out your

10· · application.· But you will have to wait one year.

11· · · · · · · MR. HUERTA:· Thank you.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 60, Juan Matthews.

14· · · · · · · MR. MATTHEWS:· Good morning.· How are you

15· · guys doing?

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Have you been sworn

17· · in?· He's got to be sworn in, also.

18

19· · · · · · · · · · · AUDIENCE MEMBER,

20· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

21· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

22

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator

24· · Blackmore, why are we here for Mr. Matthews?

25· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE:· Investigator
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·1· · Blackmore, for the record.

·2· · · · · · · He was denied due to failure to disclose,

·3· · as well as habits.· For his first arrest, it was

·4· · 2016.· DUI alcohol, caused bodily injury, five years

·5· · probation and 164 days in jail.

·6· · · · · · · Second arrest was in 2014.· There's three

·7· · charges.· Charge one is willful cruelty to child.

·8· · Charge two is assault with a deadly weapon.· Third

·9· · charge is false imprisonment.

10· · · · · · · For the first charge he did three years

11· · probation and 60 days in jail.· And charge two and

12· · three just listed probation or jail.

13· · · · · · · 2014 there was obstruction, public

14· · officer.· Three years probation and ten days in

15· · jail.

16· · · · · · · In 2010 he did have another DUI, five

17· · years probation and 185 days in jail.

18· · · · · · · As well as a 2007 DUI, three years

19· · probation and 30 days in jail.

20· · · · · · · Applicant did not disclose his arrest.

21· · There is page 2 and 3, as well as an Excel of

22· · additional arrests.

23· · · · · · · He was made provisional, but he was not

24· · added to a company roster.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, any questions
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·1· · for Mr. Matthews?

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

·3· · · · · · · Again, Mr. Matthews, why did you fail to

·4· · disclose any of your arrests?

·5· · · · · · · MR. MATTHEWS:· Yeah, I think I can see on

·6· · the -- on the convictions that there's a pattern

·7· · there.· It's all behind alcohol, if you guys haven't

·8· · noticed.

·9· · · · · · · And two years ago I straightened up my

10· · life with rehab.· I got paperwork for that.· I got

11· · two cases of previous DUIs where I lost my dad.  I

12· · went heavy on the bottle.· Almost lost everything.

13· · · · · · · I'm a PPO operator in California.· So I

14· · switched up my life.· The Gaming Board gave me my

15· · gaming card.· I got my California guard card.

16· · · · · · · And the reason I did not, I was rushing

17· · the application and I did see it, disclose all, but

18· · you got a totally different -- California.  I

19· · realize that now.· It was an honest mistake on my

20· · part.· It seems like I'm lying, something to hide.

21· · I've got nothing to hide.· I ain't got no guilt.

22· · · · · · · All that's in my past.· And I'm an

23· · outstanding citizen in South Lake Tahoe.· Got a

24· · great relationship with PD, the sheriffs, the chief

25· · of police.
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·1· · · · · · · We do have the ability -- and the only

·2· · reason I'm trying to get my guard card for Nevada is

·3· · because there's another company that gots its PPO

·4· · out here.· And we're a small company, that we

·5· · combined together and we do contract out there in

·6· · Stateline, Nevada where I can't do business at.· So

·7· · we go under his PPO and do -- conduct business.

·8· · Without this and -- it's going to be tough.

·9· · · · · · · I bought a house in Garnerville, Nevada.

10· · So I was trying to get my PPO out here so I can --

11· · business out here.· I'm in community out there.  I

12· · talk to kids about alcohol addiction.

13· · · · · · · Obviously, my past don't look good and

14· · seems like I lied to you guys.· But I truly -- I

15· · didn't.· Those -- California, you don't even have to

16· · put arrest record on there.· They just go off the

17· · FBI and background checks.· And I'm off probation

18· · on -- in Nevada I'm off probation as of February.

19· · That's why I sent the appeal.· I'm off probation

20· · from this year.· I have completion of the rehab.

21· · · · · · · And for California, I'm on court informal

22· · probation for five years because of the recent DUI.

23· · But I can get that off my record in -- hopefully

24· · within two years.· I paid all the fines and

25· · everything.
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·1· · · · · · · That's why I'm here.· And I'm trying to

·2· · better my life for my son.· I got a nine year old.

·3· · And it was all behind alcohol, but I'm an

·4· · outstanding citizen -- community, and I would love

·5· · to do business in Nevada.

·6· · · · · · · If I have to stay with my buddy in

·7· · California I will.· You guys are way tougher than

·8· · California.· I respect that.· I learned a lot, even

·9· · coming to this appeal.· So, thank you.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.

11· · · · · · · Board, any further questions?· Hearing

12· · there are no further questions, I'll entertain a

13· · motion.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

15· · · · · · · I move that we uphold the denial based on

16· · failure to disclose criminal history.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

18· · motion.· Do we have a second?

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

21· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

22· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

24· · · · · · · Sir, appreciate everything that you're

25· · trying to do.· But I would state to you that you
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·1· · have all the criminal history now listed.· The

·2· · office will help you when you fill out the

·3· · application again.· You do have the opportunity to

·4· · do it in one year.

·5· · · · · · · MR. MATTHEWS:· Okay.· I was told -- yeah.

·6· · I was told by the -- just a quick question.· I was

·7· · told by -- I would never have appealed it if I -- it

·8· · cost me, like, three months now.· I thought you went

·9· · case by case.· Is there just a standard, if you

10· · don't -- so that's the bottom line.· I got to wait a

11· · year to reapply, right?

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Yes, sir.

13· · · · · · · MR. MATTHEWS:· For the PPO to get a

14· · business license out here, is that the same thing,

15· · or I got to be off California probation?

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You have to be off

17· · probation, for sure.

18· · · · · · · MR. MATTHEWS:· California, okay.· All

19· · right.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.· Good luck

21· · to you.

22· · · · · · · MR. MATTHEWS:· Yeah.· That was a big

23· · mistake.· Going to cost me a lot of money, but

24· · lesson learned.· Keep it moving.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 63,
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·1· · they have withdrawn.

·2· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 64, Ernestine Bowdry?

·3· · · · · · · Sir, what agenda item are you?

·4· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· Ma'am?

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· What's your name, sir?

·6· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· Is Wilbert Davis.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· 74.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Why don't you

·9· · come on down, sir, and we'll see.

10· · · · · · · Just to confirm, sir, you've been sworn

11· · in?

12· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· Yes, ma'am.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay, thank you.

14· · · · · · · Investigator Manzo, could you tell us why

15· · we're here for Mr. Davis?

16· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· Mr. Davis was

17· · denied because of undisclosed weapon conviction from

18· · 1992 in Nevada for carrying a concealed weapon.

19· · · · · · · He disclosed his older domestic battery

20· · and violence arrest, but did not disclose his most

21· · recent arrest from 2021 in Nevada that was for

22· · domestic battery with use of deadly weapon.· It was

23· · dismissed.

24· · · · · · · And then he -- or the other arrests that

25· · were disclosed were 2004 from California,
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·1· · misdemeanor inflict corporal injury to spouse or

·2· · cohabitant.

·3· · · · · · · A 2002 arrest from Nevada for domestic

·4· · battery.

·5· · · · · · · And a 1996 arrest from California for --

·6· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· For?

·7· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· 1996 arrest

·8· · from California for inflict corporal injury to

·9· · spouse or cohabitant.

10· · · · · · · Again, he disclosed the three older

11· · misdemeanor arrests, but not the 1992 misdemeanor

12· · carry concealed weapon or the recent 2021 felony

13· · that was dismissed.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

15· · · · · · · Board, any questions for Mr. Davis?

16· · Sorry, senior moment.

17· · · · · · · Sir, why did you fail to let us know about

18· · your most recent arrest?

19· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· Well, my most recent arrest?

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Yes.· In 2021.

21· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· In 20- -- I -- I thought you

22· · talking about with --

23· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· With what?

24· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· With my ex, Rhonda?

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· It says domestic
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·1· · battery, use of a deadly weapon.

·2· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· Oh, no.· That was threw out of

·3· · court because she had lied.· I did not hit her with

·4· · the car.· And then '92, I think, about the concealed

·5· · weapon?· What happened, I got robbed.· And I went

·6· · back (indiscernible) to get my money.

·7· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· You went back where?

·8· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· -- Englestad.· D turn into

·9· · Englestad, up Lake Mead.· I was in that area.· I was

10· · young.· I went back to get my money.· And on the way

11· · back, I see a lady I know by the name of Ms. Liddy

12· · (ph).· An old lady I worked with at Landmark years

13· · ago.· And me and her talk.· And then we got talking.

14· · I went to walk back to the house.· Because, like,

15· · forget it.· It ain't worth it.· And then that's when

16· · I ran into the police.· And I did have a concealed

17· · weapon.· So I surrendered the gun.· And north -- I

18· · talked to -- not the public defender, but the other

19· · guy, the -- and me and him talk.· This is my first

20· · time --

21· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· First time?

22· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· First time being in that --

23· · never had a concealed weapon.· That was my first

24· · incident.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, so the question
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·1· · is -- the question is, on the application it asks

·2· · you to tell us about all that, right?

·3· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· Right.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You didn't put it on

·5· · your application.

·6· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· I didn't put the '92 on the

·7· · application because I thought it was threw out.  I

·8· · never heard it.· I never came back up on me.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· But the application

10· · says you have --

11· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· About the paper, the cleaners.

12· · I went -- I didn't know that that was on me at the

13· · time until I talked to that lady.· Then I went and I

14· · found out at the same time it was a woman.· So I

15· · went down and turned myself in and found out what

16· · was going on.· That's when I knew that was on there.

17· · And that's when that got threw out.· I really didn't

18· · know that none of that was on me.

19· · · · · · · And then '92, they had threw that out.· In

20· · court, to my knowledge, from the waving the gun.· So

21· · I really didn't know until I appear for this card

22· · that this was even on there.

23· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, did I understand,

24· · were any of these disclosed?

25· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· Yes.· He
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·1· · disclosed three:· 2004, 2002, and 1996, which were

·2· · all for either, like, domestic battery related.

·3· · · · · · · The ones that were not disclosed was the

·4· · oldest, which was the 1992 misdemeanor carry

·5· · concealed weapon.· And then`the most recent one,

·6· · which was the 2021 battery -- domestic battery with

·7· · deadly weapon, which was dismissed.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Got it.

·9· · · · · · · Any further questions from the Board?

10· · Hearing there are no further questions, I'll

11· · entertain a motion.

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

13· · · · · · · Motion to uphold the denial of Wilbert

14· · Davis's card, fail to disclose.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

16· · motion.· Do we have a second?

17· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So we have a

19· · motion, we have a second.· All in favor say aye.

20· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, now you have the

22· · paperwork that says what you've been arrested for

23· · and convicted of, okay?· In one year you can come

24· · back and reapply.· Work with the office.· They'll

25· · help you with that paperwork, okay?
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·1· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· Go where?

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Go to the office, the

·3· · PILB office.

·4· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· But that's in a year.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· That's in a year.· And

·6· · they'll help you work through this, okay?

·7· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· Could I ask a question?

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sure.

·9· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· Is that because I didn't know

10· · that that was on me?

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Yes.

12· · · · · · · MR. DAVIS:· Okay.· Thank you.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You're welcome, thank

14· · you.

15· · · · · · · So the others are supposed to come in at

16· · 1:30?· So we're on recess until 1:30.

17· · · · · · · · · · · · (Off record.)

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Everybody's ready?

19· · We'll go ahead and start the next session.

20· · · · · · · This was the -- we'll close out the 12:30

21· · session.· We had trailed Agenda Item No. 53, Chantia

22· · Reynolds?· No?· Okay.· Seeing that she's not here in

23· · the audience, she was scheduled to be here at

24· · 12:30 -- so, sorry, 53, Chantia Reynolds is not

25· · here.
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·1· · · · · · · I'll entertain a motion.

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·3· · Cortez, motioning that we uphold the denial for

·4· · Chantia Reynolds, Item No. 53, for the no call, no

·5· · show.· It is now 1:30 p.m.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

·7· · we have a second?

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

10· · have a second.· All in favor say eye.

11· · · · · · · (All present Board members voted aye.)

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

13· · · · · · · Now we're starting with Agenda No. 63; is

14· · that correct?· Or 64?· 64.· Ernestine Bowdry.

15· · · · · · · Actually, you know what?· For everyone

16· · that just came into the audience, could you please

17· · stand and get sworn in by counsel Harris.

18

19· · · · · · · · · · · AUDIENCE MEMBERS,

20· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

21· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

22

23· · · · · · · THE COURT:· Was there anybody up north,

24· · Mr. Bezick?

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Nobody up north.
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.

·2· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 64, Ernestine Bowdry.

·3· · · · · · · Investigate Cuevas, could you please tell

·4· · us why we're here for Ms. Bowdry?

·5· · · · · · · MS. BOWDRY:· Bowdry, bow.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Bowdry?

·7· · · · · · · MS. BOWDRY:· Yes, ma'am.

·8· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· Investigator

·9· · Cuevas, for the record.

10· · · · · · · Ms. Bowdry was denied her disclosed felony

11· · conviction from 2017 out of Texas for theft greater

12· · than or equal to 2,500 less than 30,000.

13· · · · · · · She disclosed all arrests, including

14· · another felony from Texas for forgery of financial

15· · instrument, also from 2017.· Those did combine

16· · together, and she did do concurrent sentences on

17· · those.

18· · · · · · · She also has a 2011 arrest from Texas for

19· · misdemeanor theft.

20· · · · · · · 2011 arrest from Texas for misdemeanor

21· · assault, cause bodily injury to family member.

22· · · · · · · Again, she did disclose all arrests, was

23· · not made provisional, and wishes to appeal.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, any questions

25· · for Ms. Bowdry?· Hearing there's no questions, I'll
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·1· · entertain a motion.

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

·3· · Cortez, motioning to grant Ms. Bowdry's appeal for

·4· · the work card based on full disclosure, time and

·5· · distance.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

·7· · motion.· Do we have a second?

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

10· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

11· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, motion passes.

13· · · · · · · The office will contact you with next

14· · steps, okay?· Congratulations.· Good luck to you.

15· · · · · · · MS. BOWDRY:· Thank you, so much.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 65,

17· · Hakeem Muhammad.

18· · · · · · · Good afternoon -- yeah, it's afternoon.

19· · Investigator Cuevas, could you tell us why we're

20· · here?

21· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· Yes.

22· · Mr. Muhammad is coming back.· He was originally seen

23· · and denied by the Board December 15th of 2022.· He

24· · was denied for failure to disclose.· He has

25· · reapplied and has disclosed all arrests, including a
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·1· · 1986 felony conviction from California for robbery,

·2· · which was amended to possession of controlled

·3· · substance.

·4· · · · · · · 1993 felony conviction from California for

·5· · possess driver's license to commit forgery.

·6· · · · · · · 2004 felony from California, and that is

·7· · for corporal injury to spouse or cohabitant.

·8· · · · · · · 2005 California conviction for possession

·9· · of controlled substance, also a felony.

10· · · · · · · And a misdemeanor from 1987 from Hawaii

11· · for assault and harassment.

12· · · · · · · Again he's reapplying.· He disclosed all

13· · arrests and wishes to appeal.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Thank you, very

15· · much.

16· · · · · · · Board, any questions for Mr. Muhammad?

17· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

18· · · · · · · Good afternoon, Mr. Muhammad.

19· · · · · · · MR. MUHAMMAD:· Good afternoon, sir.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· If you get

21· · approved with a card, what do you plan on doing with

22· · it.

23· · · · · · · MR. MUHAMMAD:· I continue to work as a

24· · security job for Allied.· Transferred from

25· · California to Nevada for Allied.· And Nevada, I
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·1· · learned have its own different, separate laws for

·2· · obtaining a guard card.· And that's why I'm here.

·3· · To continue.

·4· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Where are you

·5· · employed now?

·6· · · · · · · MR. MUHAMMAD:· I'm employed with Golden

·7· · Entertainment.· And they allowed me to get a gaming

·8· · card, which I got a lead when I was here last year

·9· · that I can do that.· So I did do that.· And now I

10· · work in the vault.· I'm a utility vault clerk.  I

11· · verify millions of dollars a day that's coming in.

12· · And really appreciate that opportunity.

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I hate to mention

15· · this, but do I see, are you a Marine, sir?

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Semper Fi.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Give him that.

18· · · · · · · Are there any further questions for the

19· · Board?· With no questions, I'll entertain a motion.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

21· · · · · · · Make a motion to grant the appeal Hakeem

22· · Muhammad, time and distance.

23· · · · · · · MR. MUHAMMAD:· Thank you, sir.

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

25· · Cortez.
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·1· · · · · · · I'm also going to second the motion.

·2· · Thank you for doing exactly what you were asked to

·3· · do and disclose all of your convictions.

·4· · · · · · · MR. MUHAMMAD:· Thank you, ma'am.

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Coming back and

·6· · doing everything is great.

·7· · · · · · · MR. MUHAMMAD:· Thank you.· I appreciate

·8· · it.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

10· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

11· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, motion passes.

13· · Congratulations.· Good luck to you.

14· · · · · · · MR. MUHAMMAD:· Thank you, Board.  I

15· · appreciate it.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you for your

17· · service, sir.

18· · · · · · · MR. MUHAMMAD:· Thank you.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· The office will

20· · contact you with next steps, sir.· Don forget your

21· · hat.

22· · · · · · · MR. MUHAMMAD:· Thank you.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Called a cover.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 66,

25· · Jajuan Rogers?
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·1· · · · · · · Good afternoon.

·2· · · · · · · MR. RODGERS:· Hello.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator Cuevas,

·4· · could you tell us why we're here for Mr. Rodgers?

·5· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· Yes.

·6· · · · · · · Mr. Rodgers was denied for his disclosed

·7· · weapon conviction from 2021 out of California.· It

·8· · was a misdemeanor carry concealed weapon and possess

·9· · controlled substance without valid prescription.· He

10· · was sentenced to one year probation.

11· · · · · · · The applicant was previously denied by the

12· · Board on September 13, 2022.· He is reapplying, has

13· · disclosed all arrests, and wishes to appeal.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, any

15· · questions for Mr. Rodgers?· Hearing there are no

16· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

17· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· This is Bezick.

18· · · · · · · I move we grant the work card for

19· · Mr. Rogers based on the fact he revealed his full

20· · criminal history.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

22· · motion.· Do we have a second?

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

25· · motion, we have a second.· All in favor say aye.
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·1· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you, very much,

·3· · for coming in and taking care of what we asked you

·4· · to do.· Your work card will be processed, and the

·5· · office will contact you with next steps.

·6· · · · · · · MR. RODGERS:· All right.· Thank you.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Agenda Item No. 67,

·8· · Matthew Weston.· Trail that.

·9· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 68, Tiffany Scott.

10· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 69, Kinyatte Thurston.

11· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· Yes, ma'am.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Good afternoon, sir.

13· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· Good afternoon.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator Cuevas,

15· · could you tell us why we're here?

16· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· Yes.

17· · · · · · · Mr. Thurston was denied for his felony

18· · conviction that he did not disclose from 1998 out of

19· · California for conspire to commit robbery; possess a

20· · firearm by felon; and possess, manufacture, or sell

21· · weapon.· He was sentenced to 19 years in prison.

22· · · · · · · He also has a 1992 -- a felony from

23· · California for petty theft with prior, where he was

24· · sentenced to three years prison and a fine.

25· · · · · · · He was made provisional and was added to
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·1· · company roster for Custom Security Guard & Patrol,

·2· · LLC.· And he wishes to appeal.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, any

·4· · questions for Mr. Thurston?

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Good afternoon,

·6· · Mr. Thurston.

·7· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· Good afternoon, sir.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Can you tell me

·9· · why you did not disclose your arrest record?

10· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· I just moved out here about

11· · 2019 from California.· And they have tooken (sic) my

12· · record -- my record was sealed a while back, so I

13· · never disclose anything because I thought I was

14· · straight because I was working out at Sunset Park.

15· · I been working out there since I been out here.· So

16· · I didn't know to put it down.

17· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Did you fill out

18· · the application yourself?

19· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· Yes.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Did you see on the

21· · one page where it had a big red stop sign that tells

22· · you to list all arrests?

23· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· No, I didn't, sir.· That's

24· · why I went back and got the paperwork and came back

25· · in to show that I had all these convictions.
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·1· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Thank you.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

·3· · for the Board?

·4· · · · · · · What do you do now?

·5· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· I work for Healthcare

·6· · Service Group in Horizon Hospital.· I work with the

·7· · convalescent homes.· And I was -- the job, when I

·8· · had this job as well, they the one told me I had a

·9· · green dot by my name and I was wondering why.

10· · Because I don't do anything no more.· I really out

11· · of the way for it.· That's why I moved to Vegas.· To

12· · leave my past behind.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Got you.· Thank you.

14· · · · · · · If there's no further questions for the

15· · Board, I'll entertain a motion.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· This is Gronauer.

17· · · · · · · Make a motion to deny the appeal based on

18· · fail to disclose.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

20· · we have a second?

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

23· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

24· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.
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·1· · · · · · · So, unfortunately, because you didn't

·2· · disclose we have to remain consistent.· You know,

·3· · we've had quite a few people who have -- you know,

·4· · it's been a long time ago, it's unfortunate.

·5· · Because if it was just on your application it

·6· · probably wouldn't be an issue.

·7· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· But excuse me, can I say

·8· · one thing?

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sure.

10· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· Because the guy I had -- I

11· · had talked to the person that gave me the card.

12· · Someone gave me a call and asked me a question.  I

13· · told them yes, and they was, like, okay.· And they

14· · had me working -- I was working the job for so

15· · many -- I mean, for so many months.· So I'm just

16· · trying to figure out -- I said yes because I didn't

17· · see -- like I said, I don't even think I wrote

18· · anything down.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· It would come up on

20· · your fingerprints, sir.· So when they ran your

21· · fingerprints, that's when they found it.

22· · · · · · · Is that correct?

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Here's the other

24· · issue, sir.· You failed to disclose your

25· · convictions.· And here on page 5 of the
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·1· · application -- hang on one second.· On page 5 of the

·2· · application, it actually -- this is the red stop

·3· · sign that we're talking about.

·4· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· I didn't --

·5· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Right.· So

·6· · unfortunately, you skipped page 5.· And on page 6,

·7· · that -- that's where it goes into it.· It's why we

·8· · tell applicants to go nice and slow.· That page that

·9· · I just showed you, it's literally one full page of

10· · it.· So you can't get past it without looking at it.

11· · And it lists clearly, list all charges, even if

12· · dismissed, expunged, denied, whatever the case may

13· · be.· It's a technicality.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Just a comment,

15· · sir.

16· · · · · · · This is Gronauer.

17· · · · · · · We would rather you be working and have a

18· · work card.· However, as we told so many times

19· · previously, that if you don't follow rules and

20· · disclose your arrest, we can't make an exception.

21· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· This -- this --

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Thank you.

23· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· Okay.· I understand.· What

24· · I'm -- what I'm trying to explain is this goes

25· · like -- when I moved here, I didn't know -- because,
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·1· · like, out here I'm from, it's, like, seven years

·2· · prior to that.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir --

·4· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· I didn't see that --

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, I understand.  I

·6· · understand.· And you not seeing it is, again, like

·7· · you not understanding the law and breaking it,

·8· · right?· You didn't break the law, but you still have

·9· · to understand it when you're in a different state,

10· · right?· So unfortunately, at this point we can't

11· · make any other decision.

12· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· Yes, ma'am.· I understand.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· But what I would tell

14· · you, just like you saw some other people come up

15· · earlier.· The gentleman was a Marine.· He served his

16· · country proudly.· He made some mistakes and he ended

17· · up not being able to get his guard card the first

18· · time, or his work card.· He came back, you know?

19· · And when you come back, make sure you work with the

20· · office.· They'll help you fill out your application.

21· · They'll help you with your arrests if there's

22· · anything, and then you can come back and see us.

23· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· That's what happened.· The

24· · lady at the office helped me fill the application

25· · out.· But I didn't see that part, so she's, like, do
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·1· · this and I did that.· And that's what I did.· And I

·2· · came and then I did everything.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, I understand.

·4· · But at the end of the day, your fingerprints is what

·5· · disclosed or let us know that you had arrests.· You

·6· · did not.· So that's the bottom line, okay?

·7· · · · · · · Please feel free to come back and see us

·8· · in one year.· We would -- we love to see people come

·9· · back.

10· · · · · · · MR. THURSTON:· All right.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.· Good luck

12· · to you, sir.

13· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 70, Patrick Sweeney.

14· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 71, Ebony Danford.

15· · · · · · · Ma'am, were you here earlier when they

16· · swore everybody in?

17· · · · · · · MS. DANFORD:· No.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Was anybody else not

19· · here?· Does anybody else need to be sworn in?

20· · · · · · · Counsel Harris will swear you in.

21

22· · · · · · · · · · · ·EBONY DANFORD,

23· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

24· · · · · ·was examined and testified as follows:

25· · ...
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator Cuevas,

·2· · could you tell us why we're here for Ms. Danford?

·3· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR CUEVAS MANZO:· Ms. Danford

·4· · was denied for her listed felony conviction from

·5· · 1993 from New Jersey for conspiracy with intent to

·6· · distribute.· She was sentenced to one year probation

·7· · and community service.

·8· · · · · · · She also has a 1995 felony from Nevada for

·9· · fugitive from justice which was dismissed, which was

10· · in correlation to the 1993 from New Jersey.

11· · · · · · · She does have a misdemeanor from 2011 from

12· · Nevada for possession of drug not introduced into

13· · commerce, where she was sentenced to community

14· · service and drug counseling.

15· · · · · · · She did disclose all arrests, was aware

16· · she'd be denied, and is now here to appeal.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Board, any questions

18· · for Ms. Danford?· Hearing there are no questions,

19· · I'll entertain a motion.

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

21· · Cortez.

22· · · · · · · I am going to motion to grant

23· · Mrs. Danford's appeal based on full disclosure, time

24· · and distance.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do
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·1· · we have a second?

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

·4· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·5· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, the motion passes.

·7· · You will get your work card.· The office will call

·8· · you with next steps, okay?

·9· · · · · · · MS. DANFORD:· Thank you.

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you.· Good luck

11· · to you.

12· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 72, Derrick Dishmon.

13· · Trail that.

14· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 74 Wilbert Davis.

15· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 75, Trevas Dixon.

16· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 76, Gregory Carmichael.

17· · · · · · · Good afternoon.

18· · · · · · · MR. CARMICHAEL:· Good afternoon.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Investigator

20· · Blackmore, could you tell us about Mr. Carmichael

21· · and why we're here?

22· · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· Yes.· Investigator

23· · Blackmore, for the record.

24· · · · · · · Applicant was denied due to having a

25· · felony conviction.· I have him as he didn't disclose
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·1· · as well, so it's a 2010, it's out of New York.· It's

·2· · contempt, first degree, violate order of protection.

·3· · He did five years' probation and then six month

·4· · protection order term for that.· Applicant did not

·5· · disclose.

·6· · · · · · · There was a 2014 disorderly conduct, no

·7· · disposition listed.· Applicant did not disclose.

·8· · · · · · · He has a 2011 criminal contempt, no

·9· · disposition was listed.· Applicant did not disclose.

10· · · · · · · Also in 2011 he also had a criminal

11· · contempt, first degree, five years probation.

12· · · · · · · As well as a 2010 stalking, trespass, or

13· · aggravated harassment.· This was in conjunction with

14· · that 2010 arrest.· It was not disclosed.

15· · · · · · · He was made provisional, but he was not

16· · added to any roster.· Applicant wishes to appeal.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, any

18· · questions for Mr. Carmichael?

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

20· · Cortez.

21· · · · · · · Mr. Carmichael, why did you fail to report

22· · any convictions?

23· · · · · · · MR. CARMICHAEL:· Just simply because I had

24· · a guard card in California and they didn't make me

25· · disclose it because of the amount of time.
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·1· · · · · · · I don't want to make it sound like I don't

·2· · take accountability for my actions, because I do.

·3· · And I missed my job and I thought that this period

·4· · of time would have cleared this.· But unfortunately

·5· · it hasn't.· I am working with an attorney to get it

·6· · disclosed.

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I do want to make

·8· · sure that you understand that you do need to

·9· · disclose it.· Even though you have legal counsel,

10· · the application clearly states you have to disclose

11· · all convictions, no matter what the disposition or

12· · the status of the actual case is.

13· · · · · · · MR. CARMICHAEL:· I understand that now.

14· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay, all right.

15· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any further questions

16· · for Mr. Carmichael?· Hearing there are no further

17· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

19· · Cortez motioning to uphold the denial based on no

20· · disclosure of criminal history.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

22· · motion.· Do we have a second?

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

25· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.
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·1· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, the motion passes.

·3· · You can come back and see us in one year.· The

·4· · office will help you with your application and your

·5· · information.· Thank you.

·6· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 77, David Cox.

·7· · · · · · · Agenda Item No. 78, Destiny Harris.

·8· · · · · · · Sir, what's your name.

·9· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· Telvin Thomas.

10· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· Last one.

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, why don't you

12· · just come on up.

13· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· In all fairness, I did list

14· · in my documents part of my petition, I have to say

15· · as soon as got so many times, I thought I did list

16· · it this time.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So Investigator

18· · Swarthout, tell us why we're here for Mr. Thomas.

19· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· The applicant was

20· · previously denied for a felony conviction before the

21· · Board at the -- and it was upheld at the 12-8-2020

22· · Board meeting.

23· · · · · · · The applicant has had all of his arrest

24· · history in Nevada sealed and did provide the court

25· · documents for it.· The applicant's fingerprints did
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·1· · come back positive.· Nothing listed in Nevada, but

·2· · did list a May 29, 2021 arrest out of Arizona for

·3· · disorderly conduct, disorderly conduct fighting,

·4· · both were dismissed.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· This was out of

·6· · Arizona?

·7· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR SWARTHOUT:· That is correct.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Madam Chair, may I

·9· · ask a question?

10· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Any questions for the

11· · Board?

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

13· · Cortez.

14· · · · · · · How are you doing, Mr. Thomas?

15· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· How's it going?

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Talk to me -- you

17· · answered -- there was a question on the application

18· · in which it asks about investigation, discipline,

19· · denial of the Board, Board whatnot.

20· · · · · · · You indicated your response was false

21· · imprisonment by police genocide.· Can you explain

22· · that to me?

23· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· I don't remember that part of

24· · the application.

25· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· So, page -- there's
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·1· · a question, and then -- it's actually No. 3.· It

·2· · asks if you've ever been investigated, disciplined,

·3· · or denied by a Board -- by this Board or in any

·4· · other state.· Your response was false imprisonment

·5· · by police genocide.

·6· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· Oh, they -- I got 46 (ph)

·7· · false imprisonment.· I just be walking down the

·8· · street --

·9· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Excuse me.· Can you slow

10· · down, please, sir?

11· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· Just get arrested and just

12· · be, like, I'm right across the street from my house.

13· · Just -- I'm not doing anything.· Just -- that's

14· · that.· That was the life I was living.· Just

15· · literally going to jail just for walking out my

16· · door.· No cause.· Cops just feel like they had a

17· · reliable arrest and it was just really harassment.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay.· Talk --

19· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· I wasn't from this city.  I

20· · wasn't born in this city.

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Understood.· So talk

22· · to me about the impersonation of a public officer

23· · back in 2022.

24· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· Well, I was at a job site and

25· · I was contracted to be there.· And they didn't want
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·1· · to pay me.· So they decided to call the police and

·2· · say I was trespassing.· And say that I pulled a

·3· · badge on them.· And I was, like, well, you guys call

·4· · the police for no reason.· And since I don't own a

·5· · badge, tell them it's not a real badge.· They be,

·6· · like, whatever.· They, like, we're calling the

·7· · police.· Get off our job site.· Really weird right

·8· · now.

·9· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· So you did pull out

10· · a badge.

11· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· I didn't badge them, though.

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Was a badge

13· · presented?

14· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· I had a badge, yes.

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· On your person --

16· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· It was my own badge.· It was

17· · right after Halloween time.

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· That was a badge

19· · that that company gave to you, or it was just a

20· · badge --

21· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· No, it was mine.  I

22· · personally bought that.· I was contracting my own

23· · jobs.· I was trying to figure out how to do my own

24· · business in my own city with my own contracts.· But

25· · I was working for a company.· And the company just
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·1· · went crazy on me because they didn't want to pay.

·2· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· That company was in

·3· · what state?

·4· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· It was PeopleReady on Main

·5· · Street.

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· So here in Nevada.

·7· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· Yeah, it's a temp agency.

·8· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Here in Nevada, a

·9· · company gave you what appears to be a law

10· · enforcement looking badge.

11· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· It was mine.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· No --

13· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· I ordered it off of Wish.

14· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Excuse me.

15· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· Yeah, because I had

16· · harassment from the police.· The police was

17· · literally --

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Hang on, hang on.

19· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· -- violate the law for no

20· · reason.

21· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· You purchased your

22· · own personal badge.

23· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· Yes.

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· That's not

25· · trespassing.· When I -- when you pull out a badge,
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·1· · you are now acting as if you have some kind of law

·2· · enforcement or security kind of status.

·3· · · · · · · You just indicated that was your own

·4· · personal badge that you bought.· Doesn't matter

·5· · where.· That's where you got the charge of

·6· · impersonating public official.

·7· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· But I didn't do it, though.

·8· · That's what I'm telling you.· They just want to make

·9· · it up -- they wanted to make up a story on me.

10· · That's --

11· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Based off what you

12· · just told me, and having been --

13· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· I'm --

14· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Excuse me.

15· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· -- badge.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Hang on, sir.

17· · · · · · · Based off what you just told me --

18· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· I can't survive.

19· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Would you like me to

20· · finish or did you want to just continue speaking?

21· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· Sorry.

22· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Based off your

23· · testimony, you gave me a visual of you did exactly

24· · impersonate a public officer.· You took out a badge

25· · that did not belong to any kind of law enforcement
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·1· · agency.· You purchased that separately.

·2· · · · · · · So when you pull it out to any citizen,

·3· · they're going to assume that you are employed with a

·4· · law enforcement agency.· That, in fact, you were

·5· · not.· So there is the impersonation part.

·6· · · · · · · Are we in agreement with that part?  I

·7· · understand you think that it was unfair.· But I'm

·8· · just making sure that we both understand what the

·9· · definitions are.· That make sense?

10· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· No.· Because I don't think

11· · you understand that it was not a real situation.

12· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Okay, understood.

13· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· You get what I'm saying?· I'm

14· · not -- I'm not alleging to be a police officer or

15· · anything of that nature.· I was stating a principle

16· · in my life at that time.· And that -- it's sealed,

17· · it's cleared, but I was not presenting myself -- I

18· · had no gun.· I had no -- a police officer has a gun

19· · to defend hisself (sic).· That's why I'm so scared

20· · of them, because they got guns.· We got --

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, real quick.· This

22· · isn't a court of law.· We --

23· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· I understand.· But that -- it

24· · hurt --

25· · · · · · · THE REPORTER:· Excuse me --
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·1· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· -- my little sister's a

·2· · second lieutenant and I would never try to be

·3· · something that would defamate (sic) her character.

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Sir, at the end of the

·5· · day, we're just here to determine whether or not

·6· · we're going to authorize getting you a work card.

·7· · · · · · · So at this point, are there any more

·8· · questions for the Board?· Hearing there are no

·9· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

10· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

11· · Cortez.

12· · · · · · · I am going to motion to uphold the denial

13· · based off of time and distance with recent contact

14· · with law enforcement.· We have a 2022 and 2021 and

15· · 2020.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

17· · motion.· Do we have a second?

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Gronauer, second.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

20· · motion, we have a second.· All in favor say aye.

21· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, two things.

23· · · · · · · One, you need a little time and distance

24· · between the contact with you and the police.· I'm

25· · sorry, but this not a conversation any more.
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·1· · · · · · · We are more than willing to come back and

·2· · reapply.· But at the end of the day, for us, because

·3· · a security officer is someone who's upholding

·4· · regulations and sometimes even laws, and discipline,

·5· · we need to make sure that you understand what that

·6· · means.

·7· · · · · · · And so at this point, I don't think any of

·8· · us have confidence that you do.· We're not here

·9· · to -- you got your cases going on, that's something

10· · completely different than what we're doing.

11· · · · · · · You have an opportunity to come back in a

12· · year.· The office will help you.· I think they did

13· · this time, to help submit your application when you

14· · come before the Board again.· Thank you, and good

15· · luck to you.

16· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· What (indiscernible) sucks.

17· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· I'm sorry?

18· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· You got to know the

19· · definition of police officer.· It's two definitions.

20· · People never look at terminologies.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Have a great day, sir.

22· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· I don't need to pass the bar.

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER GRONAUER:· Thank you.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· There's a next group

25· · coming in.
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·1· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· In 30

·2· · minutes.

·3· · · · · · · · · · · · (Off record.)

·4· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Everybody, it's now

·5· · 2:30, or 2:29, so we'll go ahead and get started.

·6· · · · · · · We had a couple agenda items that we

·7· · trailed the last session.· Those were Agenda Item

·8· · No. 67, Matthew Weston who is not in the audience.

·9· · · · · · · 68, Tiffany Scott, who is not in the

10· · audience.

11· · · · · · · 72, Derrick Dishmon.· Again, not in the

12· · audience.

13· · · · · · · And then 75, Trevas Dixon.· Trevas Dixon,

14· · again, not in the audience.

15· · · · · · · So at this time I'll take a motion on

16· · those items.

17· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

18· · Cortez motioning to uphold the denial for said

19· · agenda items based off no call, no show.· It is now

20· · 2:30 p.m., they were advised to be here at 1:30 p.m.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

22· · motion.· Do we have a second?

23· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

24· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· We have a

25· · motion, we have a second.· All in favor say aye.
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·1· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Motion passes.

·3· · · · · · · The next Agenda Item was Agenda Item

·4· · No. 77, David Cox.· Are you here, sir?

·5· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Yes.

·6· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Have you been sworn

·7· · in?

·8· · · · · · · MR. COX:· No.

·9

10· · · · · · · · · · · · ·DAVID COX,

11· · · · · · · · · ·having been duly sworn

12· · · · · · · · · · testified as follows:

13

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· This is No. 77.

15· · · · · · · Investigator Blackmore, could you tell us

16· · why we're here for Mr. Cox?

17· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE:· Yes.

18· · Investigator Blackmore, for the record.

19· · · · · · · So Mr. Cox was denied due to failure to

20· · disclose, as well as having a weapons conviction.

21· · · · · · · It was in 2001 out of California.

22· · Possessed, sale, switchblade knife.· 12 months

23· · probation and two days jail.

24· · · · · · · He also has a 2011 misdemeanor for DUI.

25· · It was three years probation and 35 days' jail.
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·1· · · · · · · And then in 2005 he had a reckless

·2· · negligent watercraft use.· 18 months probation as

·3· · well as a fine was imposed.· This was in conjunction

·4· · with a DUI, but the DUI was dismissed.

·5· · · · · · · He has a 1996 arrest for DUI warrant.

·6· · That was dismissed.

·7· · · · · · · As well as a 1994 domestic violence

·8· · conviction.· 94 days suspended sentence, as well as

·9· · a $1,000 fine.

10· · · · · · · Applicant was made provisional, but he was

11· · never added to the roster, and he was -- wishes to

12· · appeal.

13· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· Board, any

14· · questions for Mr. Cox?

15· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

16· · Cortez.

17· · · · · · · Mr. Cox, why did you fail to disclose your

18· · convictions?

19· · · · · · · MR. THOMAS:· What do you mean?

20· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· All of your criminal

21· · history, they were needing -- they needed to be

22· · disclosed and you failed to disclose the majority of

23· · them.

24· · · · · · · MR. COX:· I didn't know how to do it.  I

25· · didn't know it really needed to be done until I
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·1· · started working for Allied.

·2· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Do you know what

·3· · "disclosed" means?

·4· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Not really.

·5· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, on the application

·6· · for your license, you needed to put down all of your

·7· · arrests and convictions.

·8· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Okay.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· And you didn't do

10· · that.

11· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Okay.

12· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So that's what we're

13· · talking about when we say disclosed.

14· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Okay.· I needed to provide that

15· · to the DMV basically?

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· No, to the PILB.

17· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Okay.

18· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· And you didn't

19· · do that.· Did you see on the application where it

20· · said stop, list all your arrests, convictions?· You

21· · didn't see that?

22· · · · · · · MR. COX:· I did not see that or I would

23· · have filled it out.

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· I'm going to show

25· · you, just so you know.· In the event you do need to
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·1· · fill it out again -- you can stay right there.· But

·2· · there is -- did you do it online or with the paper

·3· · packet?

·4· · · · · · · MR. COX:· I believe I did it on -- with

·5· · the paper packet.

·6· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· So, in that paper

·7· · packet, you're going to see this exact page, and

·8· · there's a big red stop sign.· And in that stop sign,

·9· · underneath it says that you're going to be asked

10· · about your arrest history, and you needed to list

11· · all of it.

12· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Okay.

13· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· Even --

14· · · · · · · MR. COX:· I don't have that on the record.

15· · I don't know how to find it.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· So, the good thing

17· · is, it's all here for you.· So wait for our

18· · decision, and then we can give you further

19· · information.

20· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Perfect.· I thought that one

21· · thing was -- relating to was the switchblade that I

22· · had.· And I don't own one, I never will, and I

23· · didn't even know it was illegal.· I mean, that was

24· · 23 years ago.· So, anyways.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· It doesn't -- that's
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·1· · part of the problem.

·2· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Got you.

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· But the overall issue

·4· · is that you didn't write down all of the arrests

·5· · that you've had, the DUIs and all of it.

·6· · · · · · · MR. COX:· If I would have known to do that

·7· · I would have done it.· And I will do it.

·8· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, Board, are there

·9· · any other questions?· Hearing there are no other

10· · questions, I'll entertain a motion.

11· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board member

12· · Cortez.

13· · · · · · · I'm going to motion that we uphold the

14· · denial based on no disclosure of your criminal

15· · history.

16· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion.· Do

17· · we have a second?

18· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

19· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we

20· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

21· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, unfortunately, at

23· · this time we can't give you your work card.

24· · · · · · · But, sir, you know, you have all your

25· · information now.· The Board -- the licensing Board
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·1· · can give you a copy of that.· You can reapply in one

·2· · year.· After that year, you can come in and go

·3· · through this again.· I know it seems like a long

·4· · time --

·5· · · · · · · MR. COX:· I mean, me and my girlfriend are

·6· · raising the grandkids.· Financially, I need to work.

·7· · But -- and I worked for -- or Allied several events.

·8· · Even the F1 and it was awesome.· But...

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· What I would tell you,

10· · this is advice we gave to another gentleman.· It

11· · worked out well for him.· Is you can go to the

12· · Gaming Board and get a card with them.· Make sure

13· · that you take your time, go through the application.

14· · But it's different from us, so you can work in a

15· · casino or events with them.· And then that will get

16· · you through until can you get a more steady position

17· · going through with this process.

18· · · · · · · MR. COX:· I know Allied has all kinds of

19· · work.· I mean, I work for Manpower and Hatfield

20· · (ph), but they don't have much going on.

21· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Try to get your gaming

22· · card, going that route.· But make sure you take time

23· · and go through the application --

24· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Where do I go for a gaming card?

25· · I've never done it, so I don't know.
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·1· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· For the

·2· · gaming card, you have to register with the Nevada

·3· · Gaming Control Board.· I believe you just go online

·4· · to their website for the --

·5· · · · · · · MR. COX:· I'll write that down or I'll

·6· · forget it.

·7· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Thank you, very much,

·8· · sir.· Again, we hope to see you in a year.· Thank

·9· · you.

10· · · · · · · MR. COX:· Can I get a copy of that?

11· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You have to go when

12· · they're open.· So tomorrow or the next day.

13· · · · · · · INVESTIGATOR BLACKMORE:· I can e-mail you

14· · what you need to request from Nevada DPS for that.

15· · · · · · · MR. COX:· You called that what?· The

16· · Gaming Board?

17· · · · · · · EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SALADINO:· Gaming

18· · Control Board.· GCB.

19· · · · · · · MR. COX:· You all have a great day.

20· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· You, too.

21· · · · · · · So, I guess we're going to wait until

22· · 2:45, give them 10 minutes.· And then if -- we're

23· · waiting on Agenda Item No. 78, Destiny Harris.

24· · That's all.

25· · · · · · · · · · · · (Off record.)
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·1· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· It is now 2:45 and we

·2· · have one agenda item left.· Agenda Item No. 78,

·3· · Destiny Harris.

·4· · · · · · · There is no one in the audience down

·5· · south.

·6· · · · · · · Is there anyone in the audience up north?

·7· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· No one in the

·8· · audience up north.

·9· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So that means,

10· · then, I think we have a couple of items.

11· · · · · · · Did we ever do the trailed items?

12· · · · · · · DAG HARRIS:· Yes.· All trailed items

13· · through 78.

14· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So, then, I'll take a

15· · motion for Agenda Item No. 78.

16· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER CORTEZ:· This is Board Member

17· · Cortez motioning to uphold the denial based on no

18· · call, no show, in addition to failure to disclose

19· · any kind of criminal history.· And that would be for

20· · Item No. 78, Destiny Harris.· She was told to be

21· · here at 2:30, it is now 2:46 p.m.

22· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· Okay.· So we have a

23· · motion.· Do we have a second?

24· · · · · · · BOARD MEMBER BEZICK:· Bezick seconds.

25· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· We have a motion, we
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·1· · have a second.· All in favor say aye.

·2· · · · · ·(All present Board members voted aye.)

·3· · · · · · · MADAM CHAIR NIXON:· So we're at Agenda

·4· · Item No. 85, Board comment and future agenda items

·5· · for possible action.· Do we have any Board comment?

·6· · Okay.· Seeing there's no Board comment.

·7· · · · · · · Public comment?· We don't have any public

·8· · comment so that makes that kind of easy.

·9· · · · · · · Next thing is to adjourn the meeting.

10· · It's been a pleasure.· Thanks for all your hard

11· · work, and we'll see you next time.· Thank you.

12· · · · · · · (Proceedings concluded at 2:47 p.m.)
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